
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

City Council Workshop & Meeting   
September 18, 2017 

Agenda 
 
                                                                             
5:30 P.M.  Workshop  

A. Sports Tourism – Jason Paquin (20 minutes) 
B. Staying Home Rental Assistance Program – Yvette Bouttenot (20 minutes) 
C. Tax Increment Financing District #22, Advanced Payroll Services, Inc. – Eric Cousens and Ben Averill (15 

minutes) 
D. City Manager Report on Additional School Subsidy Issue – Peter Crichton (15 minutes) 

 
 7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting 
 
Roll call votes will begin with Councilor Burns 
 
Pledge of Allegiance  

I. Consent Items – All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered as routine and will be approved in one 
motion.   There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilor or citizen requests.  If 
requested, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered in the order it appears on 
the agenda.   
 

II.    Minutes  

 September 11, 2017 Regular Council Meeting  
 

III. Communications, Presentations and Recognitions   

 Communications - Charter Commission Responses to Public Hearing Comments 

IV.        Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 
City business which is not on this agenda. 

                                        
V.          Unfinished Business  
 
1. Ordinance 10-09112017 

Adopting a zoning ordinance text amendment to Article IV District Regulations, Division 2. Agriculture and 
Resource Protection District, Section 6-145 Use Regulations, (b) Special Exceptions (16), to allow Kennels 
as a Special Exception in the Agricultural and Resource Protection Zone. Second reading. 
 

2. Order 81-09112017 
Approving the renewal of the Auto Graveyard/Junkyard permit for Don’s No Preference Towing, DBA 
Morris Auto Parts & Sales, located at 940 Washington St. N. 
 

VI.         New Business  
 

 



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

3. Order 89-09182017 
Designating Robert Stone as the official Voting Delegate and Denise Clavette as the alternate Voting 
Delegate for Auburn to the Maine Municipal Association Annual Business Meeting scheduled for October 
4, 2017. 

 
4. Order 90-09182017  

Appointing Jody Durisko to the Lewiston Auburn Transit Committee (LATC). 
 
VII. Reports  

a. Mayor’s Report  

b. City Councilors’ Reports   

c. City Manager Report  

d. Finance Director, Jill Eastman – August 2017 Monthly Finance Reports 

VIII. Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 
City business which is not on this agenda. 

 
IX.        Executive Session  

 Discussion regarding an Economic Development matter, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C) 
 
X.          Adjournment 
 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive session.  Executive 
sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public 
discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the 
Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at 
the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of 
the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, disciplining, 
resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of charges or 
complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be conducted 

in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of whose 

education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive 

session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or interests 

therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or 
bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the body or 

agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if both 
parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated 

litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of professional 
responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, municipality or other public 
agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those records is 
prohibited by statute; 

 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; 

consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and 
review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, subsection 

1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement matter.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  09-18-2017              
 
Author:  Jason Paquin, General Manager, Norway Savings Bank Arena / Sports Tourism Coordinator 
 

Subject:  Huddle Up Group Introduction 
 

Information:  Mayor LaBonte and the City Council set forth a Sports Tourism initiative which received funding 
for a study to be completed through the FY18 CIP. As a result, Huddle Up Group, LLC was contracted by the 
City to complete a Sports Tourism/Events Strategic Planning Process with City Staff. Jon Schmieder and Gary 
Alexander from Huddle Up Group have already conducted Phase I of this project in the form of Stakeholder 
Interviews. Phase II begins September 19th,2017 with staff led venue and facility tours. On September 20th, 
2017, an informal 90-minute community meeting will be held in the Community Room located at City Hall 
from 8:00AM to 9:30AM where all are invited.  
 
Through the contracting of Huddle Up Group, the City is demonstrating a desire to developing a valuable 
economic tool in Sports Tourism. Five main receivables have been identified for this study to assist the City in 
developing a strategic approach to Sports Tourism: 
 

1. Complete market assessment (audit) on current sports tourism efforts of the City. 
2. In-person sports tourism and venue evaluation in the City of auburn Region. 
3. Development of a long-range strategic plan for the City of Auburn. 
4. Presentations of final recommendations. 
5. Continued support on sports tourism efforts for 1 full year. 

 
 

 
Advantages:  Develops a strategic approach to the City’s sport tourism efforts and creates a more desirable 
City to live, work and play in.   
 
Disadvantages: None known.   

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None immediately, but could allow for future increased investment and valuation. 

 
Staff Recommended Action:     None 

 
Previous Meetings and History:  
 

 
Attachments:  Huddle Up Group Itinerary   





 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  September 18, 2017  

   

Author:  Yvette Bouttenot, Community Development Manager 

 

Subject:  Staying HOME Rental Assistance Program  

 
Information: The Staying HOME Rental Assistance Program is a City Council Initiative that has been funded with 
$75,000 of HOME funds.  The goal of this program is aligned with the 5 Year Consolidated Plan goal of preventing 
homelessness in Auburn.  This will be a tenant based rental subsidy program targeted to families who are 
homeless, living in motels or in danger of become homeless through no fault of their own.  The Program will 
provide subsidies to the families in the form of security deposit payments, monthly rental payments and payment 
for monthly utilities.  In turn, the parent(s) will be asked to participate in a self-sufficiency program so that they are 
able to continue living in the apartment without the subsidies.  Being homeless can be a full time job where 
parents must make difficult choices between going to a soup kitchen, meeting with social service workers, applying 
for the various assistance programs, looking for employment, finding transportation all while ensuring their child is 
able to get to school and back safely.  This program will provide a basic need giving the parents one less worry as 
they work to improve their situation while the children continue receiving a quality education. 
 
This pilot program is estimated to assist 8 families for one year.  This includes a security deposit of $750, monthly 
rent averaging $625 and utilities of $50 monthly.  The total annual subsidy per family will average $8,850.  HUD 
regulations allows for 24 months of assistance. 

 
Advantages:  There are several advantages but the most important is that children can stay in the same classroom 
throughout the school year which improves overall learning.  The families will be in a safe, decent home and the 
parents will have the opportunity to work towards self-sufficiency without the obstacles and challenges that 
homelessness brings.  This will reduce the # of homeless families in Auburn. 
 
Disadvantages: It is unknown how many families will need this assistance and if the funded amount will be 
sufficient to meet those needs.  Families may become dependent on the subsidies. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  Families may be referred to the Health and Social Services Department for assistance with 
utility costs.  This can help stretch the program funding but may put an additional burden on city resources. 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  City Council consent for staff to move forward with implementation of this program.  
The guidelines will be finalized based on City Council recommendations and then approved by the City Manager. 

 
Previous Meetings and History:   August 18, 2018  

 
Attachments: Program Synopsis, Draft Guidelines  



2017 HOME Program 

 

STAYING HOME  
 RENTAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

SYNOPSIS 
 

 

The City of Auburn’s Department of Economic and Community Development is creating 
a rental assistance program to support homeless families with school-aged children 
attending Auburn Schools.  The program will provide funds for security deposits, 
monthly rental subsidies and utility deposits.  Participating organizations include the 
City’s Community Development Office, Auburn School Department, the Auburn Housing 
Authority and Auburn’s Health and Social Services Department.  Other organizations to 
involve as resources include Community Concepts Inc. (CCI) and Community 
Partnerships for Protecting Children (CPPC). 
 
The overall goal of this program will be to provide financial assistance to families with 
school-aged children so that they may have a stable home and remain in one school for 
the entirety of the school year.  Families will receive rental subsidies while they work to 
correct the circumstances that created the homelessness. They will be encouraged to 
participate in self-sufficiency programs. 
 
To be eligible a family must first be determined to be homeless or near homeless by the 
school department personnel who will then refer them to the Auburn Housing Authority. 
The level of assistance will be determined by the family’s current financial situation. The 
assistance can last for a period of 2 years. 
 
Assistance can include security deposits, monthly rent, and utility hook-ups.  Household 
income can be no more than 60% of the median income for the area; the family will pay 
no more than 30% of their income towards housing.  Some families may qualify for full 
rental subsidy. 
 
The family will be required to complete an application, provide financial information, find 
a suitable rental unit, sign a one-year lease agreement, meet periodically with program 
personnel to determine continued eligibility and participate in a self-sufficiency program. 
 
A committee will meet to determine if a family meets the criteria to receive assistance.  
The make-up of this committee will include one person from each of the following:  
Economic and Community Development Department, Health and Social Services 
Department, Auburn School Department and the Auburn Housing Authority. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2017 HOME Program 

 

 

 

PROGRAM CHART 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

ALL 

Reviews progress of families and effectiveness of program 

Community Development Department 

Issues assistance payments 
Completes reporting to City Manager, Citizens 

Advisory Committee and HUD 

Landlord 

Uses acceptable lease Corresponds with city on tenant behaviors 

Family in Need 

Locates a suitable rental unit Signs a lease with landlord 
Participates in self-sufficiency 

program 

Staying HOME Committee 

Review participant's file Approval /Denial for assistance 

Auburn Housing Authority 

Determine eligibility and level of assistance Insures units meet housing standards 

Auburn School Department 

Identify a family in need Make referral 



2017 HOME Program 

 

 
 

TIMELINE FOR SUCCESS 

 

Homeless 
Family 

receives 
subsidy 

3 month 
review 

Participates 
in self-

sufficiency 
program 

12 month 
review and 

recertification 

Successful  
family 

achieves  self 
sufficiency 



 1 

 DRAFT  

STAYING HOME  

 RENTAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
   

I.   BACKGROUND   

  

The City of Auburn is the recipient of Home Investment Partnership Program (HOME) 

funds from the US Department of Housing and Urban Development and has created a tenant 

based rental assistance program under city council direction.  Program funds will be used to 

support homeless families of school-aged children attending Auburn Schools by providing 

funds for security deposits, monthly rental subsidies and utility deposits so that they may 

have stable housing and allowing the children to remain at the same school throughout the 

year.  The program will be operated by the Auburn Housing Authority and the Auburn 

School Department will provide the referrals when a homeless family has been identified by 

administrators.  The Rental Assistance Program Manager will oversee the intake process, 

calculate subsidies and inspect units.  A committee of four will meet as necessary for 

approval once eligibility and level of assistance has been determined.  The committee will 

be made up of the Community Development Manager, Director of Health and Social 

Services Department, the Auburn Housing Authority’s Rental Assistance Program Manager 

and an Auburn School Official.   

 

 

II.   PROGRAM OBJECTIVE 

 

A.  Reduce the number of families with school aged children who are homeless by 

removing the barriers that prevents them from securing housing; 

B.  Provide financial assistance for stable housing to the participants;    

C. Provide referrals to Community Concepts Inc. and Community Partnerships for  

  Protecting Children for parents to enroll in self-sufficiency programs. 

 

III.  DEFINITIONS  

  

A.  Participant—a household made up of a parent/legal guardian with a school aged 

child or children in Grades K – 8 and attending classes in the Auburn School 

District;  

B.  Affordable Rent—total rent and utilities contribution shall be affordable to tenant 

and be no more than 30% of the documented income;  

C. Maximum Rent Amount – to be determined annually using the HUD Fair Market 

Rent Documentation System;  

C.  Landlord—the owner or agent who controls the property; 

D. Homeless—a household who is currently living in a motel without financial 

assistance, in a car or tent, or are staying with friends/family; 

E. Near Homeless- a household who is in danger of losing their housing because of an 

extreme financial hardship but through no fault of their own. 

 

 



 2 

 

IV.  PARTICIPANT ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA  

 

A. The participant must be homeless or near homeless; 

B. The participant household must include a parent or legal guardian and a school aged 

child or children in grades kindergarten through 8 and attending classes in the 

Auburn School District; 

C.  The participant must not have taken action to cause his/her own displacement;  

D.  The participant does not have the resources to pay for the security deposit, monthly 

rent and utility deposit; 

E. Household incomes cannot exceed 60% of area median income; households with 

income above 60% may qualify for assistance through the Gorman funded Security 

Deposit Program; 

E. The participant must agree to attend periodic meetings to determine continued 

eligibility in the program. The initial meeting will be 3 months from the date the 

tenant signed the lease;    

F. Participants will be recertified after 12 months and may be eligible for additional 

assistance not to exceed a total of 24 months as long as funding is available. 

 

V. RENTAL UNIT ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA 

 

A.  The unit must be inspected by the Auburn Housing Authority and meet Housing 

 Quality Standards and cannot have a State Lead Abatement Order. Units must be 

 inspected annually; 

B.  The amount of rent for the unit cannot exceed the Fair Market Rent as determined by 

 HUD for the area; 

C.  The landlord or property owner must use an approved one-year lease that contains 

 provisions to protect tenants’ rights. 

 

  

VI.   INTAKE PROCEDURE  

  

A.  Participants will be referred to the Auburn Housing Authority by a school 

department official;   

  B.  The intake process shall include:  

1.   Full disclosure and verification of all members expected to occupy          

the unit; 

2.  Verification of income, other resources, and expenses;  

3.  Assistance in locating a rental unit that meets housing quality standards; 

4.  Determination of the level of assistance needed to house the family; 

 

  

VII.   DETERMINATION OF SUBSIDY    

  

A. Households with Income.  The Staying Home Rental Assistance Program will provide 

assistance in the form of subsidies to be paid directly to the landlord or utility company.  

Households will be required to pay a maximum of 30% of their household income 

towards monthly housing expense; 



 3 

 

B. Households with No Income.  The Staying Home Rental Assistance Program will 

provide 100% rental subsidies for families with no income.  Participants will be required 

to attend periodic meetings with the Auburn Housing Authority to determine if subsidy 

level remains appropriate. If a household financial capacity changes after the first three 

months the subsidy received will be reviewed and may be adjusted.   

 

C. Method for Subsidy Calculation:  The rental subsidy will be determined by the 

household income of the family.  The family will pay no more than 30% of their income 

towards their housing expense. 

 

D. Eligible Expenses.  Funds may be used to pay for the security deposits, monthly rent or 

utility hook-up/connection fee to get the utility established.  Families may be referred to 

the Health and Social Services Office for assistance with monthly utilities.   

 

E. Ineligible Expense.  Funds cannot be used to pay for cable, internet or phone connection 

fees.   

 

F. Maximum Subsidy.  The maximum subsidy shall not exceed one-month’s rent for 

security deposit, HUD’s Fair Market Monthly Rent Determination for monthly rent 

based on unit size and $150 for each utility connection.  Utilities include electricity, gas 

for heat and/or cooking. 

 

VIII.    CONDITIONS  

  

A.  Participant must find an affordable rental unit in Auburn;    

B.  The participant has not already moved into the rent prior to the approval with the 

exception of extraordinary circumstances; 

C.  The participant must take advantage of all other resources identified by the 

Committee;   

D.  Tenant must agree to a one-year lease;   

E. Participant must have the Landlord complete and sign a Landlord Agreement;  

  Security deposits will be held in accordance with Maine law and returned to the City 

  of Auburn’s Community Development Office when the tenant vacates the unit;   

F.  The City will issue checks to be sent directly to landlord or utility company;   

G.  Participants are eligible for assistance for one year; the subsidy may be renewed for a 

second year following a review of participant’s income and expenses and subject to 

availability of funding.  The review will include the steps the participant has taken to 

move towards self-sufficiency; 

H. Participant must notify the Auburn Housing Authority if they move out of the unit.  

Moving out of the unit will end subsidy payments.  The subsidy may not be 

transferred to a new unit without the approval of the Committee and can only be 

approved if the tenant had to move through no fault of their own. 

  

XV.   STAYING HOME RENTAL ASSISTANCE COMMITTEE 

 

The committee shall be made up of the City of Auburn’s Community Development 

Manager, the Auburn Housing Authority’s Housing Rental Program Manager, Auburn 



 4 

School Department Official and the Director of Health and Social Services Department.  

The Committee is responsible for approving subsidies for each participant.  Approval will be 

by unanimous vote and all committee members must be in attendance.  If all members are 

not available to meet in person, a qualified substitute must be available to represent the 

absent member.  

 

The role of the Auburn School Department Official is to provide referrals to the Auburn 

Housing Authority, to provide documentation that the participant is homeless or near 

homeless, that the household members include a parent or legal guardian, a child/children 

attending Auburn Schools from K – 8
th

 grade and reporting if a participant is not attending 

school on a regular basis. 

 

The role of the Housing Rental Program Manager is for overseeing the intake process to 

include determining eligibility and level of assistance; to provide the City with proper 

documentation for processing subsidy payments; inspection of rental units to ensure they 

meet Housing Quality Standards; and to review participants for renewal.  Auburn Housing 

will maintain participant files that will be available for monitoring. 

 

The role of the Community Development Manager will be to monitor the program and 

ensure it meets HUD regulations, process security deposit and rental subsidy payments to 

landlords; payments for establishing utilities; and complete reports to HUD. 

 

The role of the Director of Health and Social Services will be to meet with the families who 

may need additional resources. 

 

X. OTHER RESOURCES 

 

 Community Concepts-Bridges Out of Poverty and CCFC Family Self-sufficiency Program; 

Community Partnerships for Protecting Children  

 

 

 

 

 

9.13.2017 (Draft) 

 

 

   

  



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Workshop Meeting Date: September 18th, 2017     
 
Author:  Michael Chammings, Director of Economic and Community Development 
 

 

Subject:  Workshop for creation of Tax Increment Financing District # 22, Advantage Payroll Services, Inc.  
 
 

Information:  Advantage Payroll Services Inc is requesting the creation of a Tax Increment Financing (TIF) 
District for the purpose of the retention of one hundred forty-four (144) jobs. The district will serve to ensure 
that Advantage Payroll Services Inc. can make needed upgrades to their existing facility on Merrow Road 
which will allow the site to remain feasible. These upgrades include the purchase and installation of new 
furniture and equipment, parking lot expansion, and site improvements to include HVAC replacements, 
Installation of ADA qualifying restrooms, and efficiency improvements with a total estimated cost of 
$2,980,000.  It is expected that all site improvements will be completed within the first two years of the 
creation of the district.  
   

 
Advantages:  The Corporation previously reviewed three potential sites, two out of the state, with the third 
option in the existing facility. The creation of a TIF district will allow for the City to remain competitive relative 
to other locations and will allow the developer to make necessary improvements to their existing structure.  
The creation of a TIF district will allow for the retention of one hundred forty-four jobs within the City.  
 
Disadvantages: There may be future loss of additional future taxes to the general fund during the duration of 
the TIF district.  
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: Minimal, the tax shift/general fund loss will be minimal as well as there may be 
minimal legal fees impacted from the budget.   

 
Staff Recommended Action:  The staff recommends scheduling of a public hearing and first reading for the 
proposed TIF district on October 2nd.  
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: Previously reviewed in two separate council meetings in executive session  
     
 

 
Attachments: Application for TIF # 22  

   











































































Page 1 of 6 

Report to Auburn City Council  

From Lewiston And Auburn Joint Charter Commission  

September 7, 2017 

At the public hearing held on July 31 at Central Maine Community College we listened to comments 
made and questions asked by the persons who spoke. 

Our thanks to the Mayor and Council for holding the hearing and for the orderly way it was conducted.   

With the help of notes provided to us by Auburn’s city clerk here are our reactions and responses. 

Favorable Comments 

Jim Wellehan.  There is a need for consolidation and a need for efficiencies.  Consolidation would 

provide an economic benefit, with reasonable taxes and better schools. 

Clift Greim:  There are four common threads: 1) we all want this community to prosper; 2) we want to 
attract business here; 3) we want to keep and attract people to live here; 4) how are we going to grow this 
community and redefine ourselves?  When a business or company looks to reduce spending and save 
money, the first thing they look for is consolidation opportunities.  Consolidation can make us more 
efficient and in the long term save us money. 

Mary LaFontaine.  Rules, codes, taxes and fees will be the same and ease business between the cities.  
Pay rates and benefits will no longer be a competition between Fire and Police Departments and staff.  
As one city, it would be an opportunity to build a school system that allows growth, specialties, and 
potential beyond what we can imagine and one that is better than the two separate school systems.  This 
is an opportunity for us to be leaders and innovators and we should take this opportunity for our youth 
and our future. 

Kristy Phinney.  We need to take a step back and stop pointing out the negatives to our neighbors 
across the river and look forward to the future.  A combined city of 60,000 people will bring new and 
different opportunities.  It is time to take this community to the next level by thinking more boldly.  It is time 
to show the rest of Maine what we are made of. 

Dan Thayer.  Whenever consolidation comes up, he wonders what it is that makes us so different?  He 
finds the current divisiveness troubling.  There is a dire need to be considered one.  A community is a 
place where people work, live, and learn together.  Communities do not have fences.  We are one 
community and one economic unit, and he hopes we take it to the next level. 

James Ayotte.  There are no guarantees or certainties that the numbers are going to come out and 
things will be great.  It is not going to happen overnight.  It is going to be tough, but it is an investment in 
the future.  We have to analyze the risk, analyze the rewards, and make the best decision we can.  We 
have to move forward with the best set of ideas possible. 

Bruce Rioux.  He doesn’t necessarily feel the merger will benefit him but he hopes that his son and 
daughter will settle down in this area and feels the merger will benefit them and their future.  He feels that 
merging will results in significant savings. 

Charles Morrison:  Questions regarding proposed savings will be answered, as best they can, by the 
Joint Charter Commission.  Since 1996, four groups have looked into consolidation savings; the range of 
saving was a low of $2.0 million to a high of $2.7 million from three of the former study groups.  Three 
major reasons to consolidate: 1) joint planning and joint economic development – much better done 
together than separately; 2) to improve our schools; 3) to show that we can do something really big. 



Page 2 of 6 

Speaking In Opposition  

Matt Leonard.  This is an old idea and not one that is innovative; it will take 26-month process to figure 

out how to put the cities together.  He has 3 questions regarding consolidation. 

1. Public law requires up-to-date data 

CC Response.  The Commission operates under state statue -- 30-A MRSA Section 2152.  It 
says the joint charter commission shall draft an agreement between the consolidating 
municipalities which includes: 

MRSA 
Section 

2152 
Requirement 

A Names of the municipalities 

B Name under which it is proposed to consolidate, which must be distinguishable 
from the name of any other municipality in the State, other than the consolidating 
municipalities 

C Property, real and personal, belonging to each municipality, and its fair value 

D Indebtedness, bonded and otherwise, of each municipality 

E Proposed name and location of the municipal office 

F Proposed Charter 

G Terms for apportioning tax rates to service the existing bonded indebtedness of 
the respective municipalities 

H Any other necessary and proper facts and terms 

 
Assets, indebtedness, and tax apportionment information using the most recent information we 
have was presented in the document set given to Auburn City Officials on June 30.  

2. Data used in property evaluation is not appropriate.   

CC Response.  Using state equalized values for property values (as was detailed in the “Options 
and Impacts” study) is the best way to appropriately compare property taxation between 
municipalities.  

3. Reconciliation of proposed savings with costs is not included in the financial analysis.  

CC Response.  The Options and Impacts study detailed all costs and savings which it felt could 
be accurately counted.   

There are other costs and savings are which are more difficult to precisely count.  Responding to 
a COLAC challenge, those elements were included the “Follow the Money” section of the 
8.20.2017 Letter To LA.   

  

https://api.ning.com/files/vwzIt05Fr11f1CmXSuWB80DneKYW9ryhBlER1TqoqaJG-VVS6fyo5PYnwz*zgfy2J7VVFrixxCZ8Zz37fiNAopXPMDGXBUbo/607FINALREPORTJan232017.pdf
https://api.ning.com/files/vwzIt05Fr11f1CmXSuWB80DneKYW9ryhBlER1TqoqaJG-VVS6fyo5PYnwz*zgfy2J7VVFrixxCZ8Zz37fiNAopXPMDGXBUbo/607FINALREPORTJan232017.pdf
https://api.ning.com/files/vwzIt05Fr11f1CmXSuWB80DneKYW9ryhBlER1TqoqaJG-VVS6fyo5PYnwz*zgfy2J7VVFrixxCZ8Zz37fiNAopXPMDGXBUbo/607FINALREPORTJan232017.pdf
https://newlacharter.ning.com/reports-to-community/letter-to-la-8-20-2017
https://newlacharter.ning.com/reports-to-community/letter-to-la-8-20-2017


Page 3 of 6 

Matters relating to city/union agreements are very challenging for outside parties to address 
because state statutes dictate processes for bargaining unit determination and negotiations 
between the units and the city.  Decisions regarding these and related matters will be made by 
the city council and school committee under a consolidation plan, and the Joint Charter 
Commission did not want to impose anything relating to those items that are subject to collective 
bargaining.   

Collective bargaining agreements are not affected by the Consolidation Agreement and in effect 
are protected in the Transitional Section 10.5 of the proposed charter. 

Sharon Beaudoin.  She is concerned with all the “rosy promises” that have been made, adding that 
bigger isn’t always better, and bigger may not create the efficiencies that you are looking for.  Regarding 
School District Consolidations, there were 3 areas that consolidation of services worked: 1) purchase of 
supplies, 2) transportation, 3) staff development.  Studies show relatively modest savings and may lead to 
increased costs for more than a decade; and, can lead to unintended consequences both positive and 
negative. 

CC Response.  Bigger isn’t necessarily better.  Smaller isn’t necessarily better, either.   

Our position is the merging two side-by-side school districts offers professional educators a once-in-
a-lifetime opportunity to rethink and reinvent our education system in LA with the goal of making it the 
best city system in the state.  A larger system offers the opportunity to offer greater breadth and depth 
of offerings – and thus more personalized experience for every student.  We must improve education 
in LA, and this is our best opportunity. 

Kyle Butler.  There will be individual resident costs to update individual address information for things 
like credit cards and driver’s licenses.  

CC Response.  Credit cards, checking account information, etc. can easily be changed on line or 
when making a monthly payment.  Address info on checks only need to be changed when a supply is 
replenished.  Drivers’ licenses will be changed when they need to be renewed.  The costs to change 
personal information will be the time it takes to make a call or go online. 

Since zip codes are not changing, the mail will be delivered as it currently is. 

Stephanie Crystal.  Will Auburn have to absorb the General Assistance costs in Lewiston?  Will 
consolidation require property revaluation?  If the consolidation doesn’t work, is there an exit strategy?  
She would prefer a different name than Lewiston-Auburn.   

CC Response.  The cost of General Assistance is substantially reimbursed by the State of Maine.   

Property values will have to be placed on the same basis so that everyone is taxed fairly.  Auburn’s 
values are close to market value.  Lewiston has not had a full revaluation since the late 1980s.  Their 
values are roughly at 80% of market.   An update was put in place several years ago but not 
implemented.  Given that it has been 30 years, an updating is long overdue, and there’s not a better 
time than when significant cost savings are being put in place. 

The same referendum process that allowed for a merger could reverse it. 

Neil Lagasse:  He has yet to see any government save any money. 

CC Response.  You have not yet seen two cities merge.  We have put together a detailed road map 
regarding how and where money can be saved.  If the cities merger, city officials and citizens will 
have the tools to assure the benefits are realized.   

  



Page 4 of 6 

Belinda Gerry.  Two is better than one and, bigger is not always better.  We don’t need clout to be big.  
Clout in the legislature is a team effort.  Most people don’t like big government.  A little competition in 
economic development from Auburn and Lewiston is a good thing.  She is against the merger because 
she wants to preserve Auburn’s future.  

Having 10 ward councilors from separate wards does not provide the safety net which is current in the 
Auburn’s system which also has at-large councilors.   

CC Response.  The issue of “clout” is not limited to legislators alone.  There is impact when an area 
of 60,000 people is being represented before legislative committees, state, and quasi-state agencies. 

From an economic development perspective, data is now maintained for Lewiston and Auburn 
separately, by counties, and metro-areas.  It would enhance opportunities to have data sets that 
automatically combine Lewiston-Auburn rather than a population of 37,000 and 23,000 respectively.  
By national standards, even a population of 60,000 is considered quite small but a significant step-up 
regionally!   

More significantly, clout comes from government officials and outsiders recognizing the new energy 
coming from an LA that has been reborn and is on the move.  Clout comes from being a place where 
government professionals, educators, and people who want to live – a dynamic and exciting place 
reborn and rethinking, reengineering, recommitting, and refocusing itself on the future. 

Economic development competition for two side-by-side cities is not good at all.  Any business that is 
interested in our area will look at both sides of the river for the best site.  Only by combining 
resources can we afford the professional staffs that can effectively reach out and sell our attributes.   

It is not clear what was meant by redundancy and a safety net.  The proposed charter provides for a 
mayor, elected-at-large, who will be a voting member of the City Council.  In addition, there are five 
wards with two councilors in each ward elected in alternating years which provides for continuity as 
no more than 50% of the councilors will leave office in any given election. 

Betty Perkins:  Who pays for changes of signs on Routes 202, 100, 196 and the Turnpike; duplicate 

street names?  Will Auburn properties be assessed a “rain tax” as is done in Lewiston? 

CC Response.  Signs on those roadways are put up and maintained by MDOT and the Turnpike 

Authority respectively.   

Duplicate street names currently exist and are a non-issue with the 9-11 Emergency access/dispatch 
center, police and fire departments.   

There are about 30 duplicate street names.  Changing signs is a minor matter. Our recommendation 
is to add East to duplicate streets on the former Lewiston side, and add West to duplicate streets on 
the former Auburn side. 

With postal zip codes remaining the same, it should be a non-issue with mail.   

There is a cost to dispose of water runoff. In Auburn that cost is built into real estate taxes.  In 
Lewiston this cost is shared among all real estate owners, including those which do not pay real 
estate taxes, such as churches, hospitals, and colleges).   

A user-fee raised from all real estate owners provides some property tax relief.  That is, if such a 
system were applied to Auburn, money raised from a user-fee proportionately reduces required tax 
revenue.   

The new Lewiston-Auburn City Council will have to decide whether to use the Lewiston or the Auburn 
model. 



Page 5 of 6 

Louise Decoteau.   She has seen communities come together out of necessity and it hasn’t always 
worked out in the best educational interest of the children.  She thinks they can develop committees 
between Lewiston and Auburn to enhance the value of education without merging the communities. 

CC Response.  There has been no community coming together like we are proposing.  The Charter 
Commission is proposing a merger precisely because separate political entities just don’t have the 
will to work together no matter now logical the rationale to do so.  In fact, it is clear that our two cities 
are pulling away from each other right now, just the opposite of what one would expect during hard 
times. 

Gentleman[?]:  He didn’t think the merger changes anything except add confusion. 

CC Response.  Every day people complain about their city government and schools – about how it 
doesn’t work and how it should work better.  And it is darn tough to use the political process to 
address change because of inertial and vested interests.  The merger is a game changer because 
Auburn and Lewiston citizens have a unique once-in-a-lifetime opportunity to actually rethink and 
reengineer how government and schools run.   

If we don’t take this opportunity, we’ll be right back to where we are.  The complainers will be 
complaining, and they will be right. 

For most people though there will be little personal impact.   We see ourselves as one LA today.  
Tomorrow the government will be more efficient, and the educators will be working to improve the 
schools.  And step by step our community will be rising. 

Mark Cyr   

1. How will the mill rate be determined?  

CC Response.  The tax rate will be set as it is by the cities individually today.  Operating costs 

will be shared by all properties in proportion to their property values.   

It is important to note that current Auburn debt will be paid by current Auburn taxpayers, and 
current Lewiston debt will be paid by current Lewiston taxpayers.  That means there will be 
slightly different tax rates until all pre-merger debt is totally retired. 

2. Will Auburn taxes go up?  

CC Response.  Page 78 of the “Options and Impacts” study projects significant expense savings 
from merging the two cities.  That would mean political pressure to reduce taxes or hold taxes 
unchanged.  

3. Will Lewiston residents need to pay for the new ELHS?  

CC Response.  The new Auburn high school will be paid for by the state, not Auburn or Lewiston 

taxpayers. 

Peter Whitmore:  Lewiston and Auburn are and have been one community.  Merging the two cities was 
not going to accomplish anything.  Until the business climate is changed on a state level, we will not 
attract businesses from out of state. 

CC Response. And when might we expect the business climate state wide to change?  By this logic 

we do not control our own destiny, and we should resign ourselves to an inevitable decline. 

Our answer is to be proactive and take control of our destiny by pooling resources and finding 
solutions that overcome the larger statewide economic and democratic challenges that face us.  We 
believe we have the people and the creativity to chart a uniquely LA course to a better future, but we 
have to work as one, not as two rival cities holding on to a past that is not coming back. 



Page 6 of 6 

Ron Potvin:  No matter how you look at this, these is a cost factor. The consultant’s report says Auburn 

taxes will go up.  

CC.  This is false.  Here is the passage from page 80 of the Options and Impacts study: 

 

There are projected tax savings for both Auburn and Lewiston taxpayers. 

https://api.ning.com/files/vwzIt05Fr11f1CmXSuWB80DneKYW9ryhBlER1TqoqaJG-VVS6fyo5PYnwz*zgfy2J7VVFrixxCZ8Zz37fiNAopXPMDGXBUbo/607FINALREPORTJan232017.pdf


 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   September 18, 2017  Ordinance:  10-09112017 
 
 
Author:  Doug Greene, Department of Economic and Community Development 
 

Subject:  Text Amendment Allowing Kennels as a Special Exception in the  
     Agricultural and Resource Protection District (AGRP) 
 

Information:  Based on a citizen’s request, the Auburn Planning Board agreed to initiate a zoning text amendment 
to allow Kennels as a Special Exception in the Agricultural and Resource Protection (AGRP) District.  The Staff 
supported the text amendment as only one zoning district clearly allowed Kennels, that being the Low Density 
Rural Residential (LDRR) district.  The Staff also felt the low density, rural nature of the AGRP was an appropriate 
setting and that a special exception review by the Planning Board would allow for a site plan review and notice to 
surrounding property owners.  Another aspect of the Planning Board’s deliberation was to determine that a Kennel 
would not be considered an agricultural use, nor would new residences be allowed as an accessory use to a Kennel.  
Kennels in the AGRP district would be for overnight stays and not for daytime only doggy daycare type use.  In 
addition, Kennels as a special exception would be allowed in the Low Density Country Residential (LDCR) district 
and continue in the LDRR district provided the applicant had a minimum lot size of three (3) acres. 

 
Advantages:  Allowing Kennels in the AGRP zone would provide an additional source of income and be compatible 
in the more open rural areas of Auburn.  A required special exception process will ensure compatibility to the 
surrounding area. 
 
Disadvantages:  Minimal provided adequate Planning Board review of the special exception application. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  None 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Staff recommends the City Council positively support the text amendment and move 
it to a first reading and public hearing at their next meeting. 

 
Previous Meetings and History: Planning Board initiates text amendment (May 9, 2017) and discussed the 
proposal on June 13 (public hearing) and July 11th.  The text amendment was presented to the City Council at the 
August 21, 2017 workshop. A public hearing and first reading was held on 9/11/2017. It failed the first reading 3-4 
with Councilors Walker, Burns, Stone, and Titus opposed. 

 
Attachments:  

1. Staff memo to Planning Board (May 9) 
2. Staff Reports to Planning Board (June 13 and July 11)  
3. Planning Board report to the City Council (July 17, 2017) 
4. Draft text amendment 



City of Auburn, Maine 

Office of Economic and Community Development 

60 Court Street, Auburn,  Maine 04210  

www.auburnmaine.gov          207.333.6601 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 

 

To: Planning Board, City of Auburn   

 

From: Zach Mosher, City Planner 

 

Date: May 9, 2017 

 

RE: Planning Board Discussion on Dog Kennels 

 

 

The Planning Staff has been approached with a request to consider allowing Dog Kennels in the 

Agricultural and Resource Protection District.  The Staff would like to present background 

information to help with the discussion at your May 9, 2017 meeting. 

 

A. Existing Definitions in Zoning Ordiance - Section 60-2 

 

1. Kennel means any business or establishment other than a veterinary hospital, whether 

operated separately or in connection with another business or establishment, that keeps, 

boards or trains dogs or cats or other animals, which may legally be present in such 

facilities, for profit. Kennels must be established, maintained and operated in compliance 

with all applicable zoning and land use regulations of the city and all state statutes and 

regulations of the state.  

2. Livestock means, but may not be limited to, any horses, mules, donkeys, cattle, goats, 

sheep or swine. 

3. Farm, animal, means any parcel of land that contains at least the following land area used 

for the keeping of horses, mules, cows, goats, sheep, hogs and similar sized animals for 

the domestic use of the residents of the lot, provided that adequate land area is provided 

for each animal unit, excluding water bodies of one-quarter acre surface area or larger:  

Cattle: One bovine animal unit per acre of cleared hay-pasture land.  

Horse: 1.5 animal units per acre of cleared hay/pasture land.  

Sheep: Three animal units per acre of cleared hay/pasture land.  

Swine: Two animal units per acre of cleared land.  

Other animal farms: The required lot size shall be determined by municipal 

officer charged with enforcement and shall conform to the lot size for similar 

sized animals.  

4. Pet means any animal which may be legally owned in accordance with the provisions of 

this chapter, normally kept for pleasure rather than utility, excluding livestock, is in the 

owner's possession and for which it can be reasonably demonstrated that the care of said 

pet is the responsibility of a given individual. 

 

 

 

dgreene
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



Page 2 of 2 
 

B. How Zoning Districts Treat Kennels as a Land Use 

 

1. Agricultural and Resource Protection District (AGRP) does not specifically mention 

kennels as a permitted or special exception use.  A liberal interpretation might  allow 

kennels as part of a farm operation if dogs are defined as livestock or farm animals.  

2. Low Density Country Rural Residential District (LDCR) does not specifically mention 

kennels as a permitted or special exception use.   

3. Low Density Rural Residential District (LDRR) allows kennels as a special exception use 

#7: “Licensed kennels provided that there shall be available land area of at least three 

acres.” 

4. The Suburban Residential district lists under permitted uses  

 #(8)  Animal farms provided that the land area required per animal unit conforms to the 

definition of animal farm contained in section 60-2 and:  
a. A site plan be submitted to the municipal officer charged with enforcement that 

contains the information required by section 60-1301.  

b. Upon request, the municipal officer charged with enforcement may waive the 
necessity of providing any of the foregoing information which is not relevant to the 
proposed development.  

c. In judging whether or not a permit to operate an animal farm will be issued, the 
municipal officer charged with enforcement shall review and make a decision 
consistent with the finding requirements of section 60-1304.  

The Surbuban Residential (SR) District, as a special exeception, allows uses under LDRR 

so that in the Surburban Residential district: All uses permitted by special exception in the 

Rural Residence (RR) District, except those uses allowed by section 60-229(b)(3), (9), 

(11) and (12). This might imply that Kennels as a special exception would carry over to 

the Suburban Residential District. 

5. Urban Residential (UR) District- In the Urban Residential District, the permitted use of 

Animal Farms (found in Suburban Residential) is gone. However, there is room to 

interpret kennels might be allowed since special exception #7 from the LDRR district is a 

possible special exception use carrying into the Urban Residential District. 

6. The Multi-Family Suburban District (MFSD) allows special exception uses from the 

Urban Residential District to be carried into the MFSD district; therefore special 

exception use #7 from LDRR could be allowed.  

7. The Multi-Family Urban District (MFUD) allows special exception uses from the Urban 

Residential District to be permissible in the MFUD district; therefore special exception 

use #7 from LCRR could be allowed.  

8. In the General Business (GB) District, Kennels are not specifically mentioned, except in 

special exception use #20: “Animal hospitals and pet shops, but no kennels.” 

9. In the General Business II (GBII), Kennels are not specifically mentioned except, in 

special exception use #20: “Animal hospitals and pet shops, but no kennels.”    

10. In the Industrial District (ID), there is no mention of kennels.  

 

 

https://www.municode.com/library/me/auburn/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH60ZO_ARTIVDIRE_DIV4LODERUREDI_S60-229USRE


 

 

April 20, 2017 

Eric J. Cousens 
Deputy Director of Planning and Development 
Office of Planning and Development 
City of Auburn 
60 Court Street STE 104 
Auburn, Maine 04210 

Eric,  

I would like to formally inquire about the permitted use in the Agricultural and Resource 
Protection (AGRP) Zone. Per our previous conversation, I would like to build a dog 
kennel for the purpose of temporarily boarding dogs overnight. The facility would be 
designed with 12 individual kennels, 2 grooming stations, an entrance/office/waiting 
area and bathroom. It will also include 2 fenced-in pasture areas. This will not be a 
doggy day care. 

In reading thru the zoning use regulations, it appears that this usage is a permitted use 
in the AGRP Zone. As discussed, it may be best to ask the Planning Board for their 
concurrence. If necessary, they may want to modify some of the permitted uses write-
up. 

If you will let me know, I would be glad to attend the Planning Board meeting to answer 
any questions. 

V/r 
Terry M. Dailey 

  

Terry M Dailey
1054 North River Road

Auburn, Maine 04210
Phone 207 514-3030

Email: terry.dailey@icloud.com



City of Auburn, Maine 

Office Economic and Community Development 

 www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  

 Auburn, Maine 04210  

 207.333.6601 

 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

PLANNING BOARD STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Auburn Planning Board 

 

From: Zach Mosher, City Planner 

 

Re: Text Amendment to allow Dog Kennels in the Agricultural and Resource 

Protection district. 

 

Date: June 13, 2017 

 

 

I. PROPOSAL- The Planning Board initiated a text amendment at its May 9, 2017 

meeting. The initiation for the text amendment came as a result of a letter from a local 

citizen who is interested in constructing a dog kennel on his property in the Agricultural 

and Resource Protection (AGRP) district for the purpose of temporarily boarding dogs 

overnight.  

Dog kennels are not currently allowed in the AGRP district. The text amendment 

would allow dog kennels in the AGRP district as special exception. Dog kennels are first 

mentioned in the Low Density Rural Residential district (LDRR). The LDRR district 

allows kennels as a special exception use #7: “Licensed kennels provided that there 

shall be available land area of at least three acres.”  

The proposed text amendment allowing dog kennels in the AGRP district as a special 

exception. The staff also recommends the special exception to carry-over into the Low 

Density Country Residential District (LDCR). As mentioned, kennels are currently 

permitted as a special exception use in the LDRR district. The special exception use of 

dog kennels is then allowed to carry over into every other higher density residential 

district provided the three acre minimum lot size is intact. However, staff would like to 

discuss whether to continue to allow the special exception use of dog kennels in all 

residential districts or whether to exclude its use in the smaller lot districts.   

II. DEPARTMENT REVIEW- The Plan Review Committee met and reviewed this 

proposal at its May 17, 2017 meeting.  The group discussed the general impact of 

the text amendment and had little concerns about the text amendment itself.  There 

was some discussion and agreement over prohibiting dwelling units as an accessory 

to the use of dog kennels in the AGRP district. Kennels do not require the 

substantial investment and commitment to a long term natural resource based 

dgreene
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2



industry as other agricultural uses do and the potential for using a kennel for the 

purpose of establishing a residence exists.   

 

a. Police – No comments 

b. Auburn Water and Sewer – No comments 

c. Fire Department – No Comments 

d. Engineering – No Comments. 

e. Public Services – No comments. 

f. Economic and Community Development- No comments. 

 

III. PLANNING BOARD ACTION – The Planning Board is being asked to send a 

recommendation on the text amendment to the City Council. The draft text 

amendment is attached with this report and consists of two conditions, 1) the 

minimum lot size of the zoning district or three acres, whichever is greater and 2) 

new residential dwelling units shall not be permitted as an accessory to the dog 

kennel.  

 

IV. STAFF RECOMMENDATION – The staff considered the impacts of allowing dog 

kennels in the AGRP district. Dog kennels can create negative impacts of noise to 

adjacent neighbors. Kennels as a special exception in the AGRP, LDCR and LDRR 

districts will allow the Planning Board to provide public notice and evaluate impacts 

to the surrounding area, using the special exception and site plan review criteria. 

Staff also recommends keeping the three acre minimum lot size or the lot size 

required by the zoning district, whichever is greater. Staff further recommends 

adding a clause specifying residential dwellings are not permitted in the AGRP 

district as an accessory to the special exception use of dog kennels.  

 

The Staff recommends the Planning Board send a recommendation of APPROVAL 

to the City Council for the text amendment with the following findings: 

1) Kennels in the AGRP district is a reasonable special exception use given its 

low-density, rural nature. 

2) Allowing kennels as a special exception in the AGRP district will allow 

adequate protection to surrounding areas from adverse impacts  

3) The City of Auburn’s Comprehensive Plan supports “…a broader range of 

rural uses” (Chapter 2, p. 108). 

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Zach Mosher 

City Planner 



City of Auburn, Maine 

Office of Economic and Community Development 

60 Court Street, Auburn,  Maine 04210  

www.auburnmaine.gov          207.333.6601 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 

To: Planning Board, City of Auburn   

 

From: Zach Mosher, City Planner 

 

Date: July 11, 2017 

 

RE: Continued Discussion of a Dog Kennel Text Amendment  

 

At the June 13
th
 Planning Board meeting, a text amendment to allow dog kennels in the 

Agricultural and Resource Protection (AGRP) was postponed. Staff wanted to re-convene 

and clarify a couple aspects of the text amendment and bring it back to the Planning Board 

in July.   

Staff Comments:  

1) Licensed dog kennels are a sensible and reasonable Special Exception use in the 

Auburn’s more rural residential districts. Staff recommends limiting the use of dog kennels 

to the following  4 districts: Agriculural & Resource Protection District (AGRP), Low 

Density Country Residential District (LDCR), the Low Density Rural Residential district and 

Suburban Residential (SR).  Staff also recommends continuing to require the minimum lot 

size of three acres or the zoning district minimum, whichever is greater.   

2) The use of dog kennels does not constitute an agricultural use, that is, dog kennels do 

not require a long-term investment/use of Auburn’s open agricultural land or natural 

resources.  

3) Because dog kennels are not considered an agricultural use, staff recommends 

prohibiting the construction of any residential units accessory to a kennel in the AGRP 

district.  

4) The larger issue of residential uses in the AGRP District will be given careful 

consideration as part of the Ag Study that will start this year and should not be modified at 

this time with the limited public input to date.   

Staff Recommendation: 

The Staff recommends APPROVAL of the text amendment with the following findings and 

conditions: 

1) Allowing Dog Kennels in the AGRP district is a reasonable special exception use 

given its low-density, rural nature. 

2) The review of Dog Kennels as a special exception in the AGRP district will allow 

adequate protection to surrounding areas from adverse impacts  

3) The City of Auburn’s Comprehensive Plan supports “…a broader range of rural 

uses” (Chapter 2, p. 108). 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Conditions: 

 

a. Minimum lot size of the zoning district or three acres, whichever is greater 

b. No residential dwelling unit will be allowed as an accessory to the dog kennels use.   



dgreene
Typewritten Text
Attachment 3





dgreene
Typewritten Text
Attachment 4







d. Accessory retail sales shall be limited to 10 percent of building area or 1,000 square feet, 
whichever is smaller. 

e. Hours of operation shall limited to between 6 a.m. and 8 p.m. 

(15) Compost operations, excluding municipal and industrial waste, to process products such as manure, 
bedding, animal mortalities, waste feed, produce, forestry by-products, leaves and yard trimmings in 
compliance with state and federal regulations, subject to the following conditions: 

a. All compost sites shall be evaluated for suitability by a properly qualified professional, including 
benchmark water testing prior to approval. 

b. Provisions shall be made to avoid surface and groundwater pollution. 

c. Provisions shall be made to counteract vermin, insects and odors. 

d. Must comply with all applicable state department of environmental protection and state 
department of agriculture rules and regulations and best management practices. 

e. Shall not be located within the Lake Auburn Watershed Overlay District. 

(16) Licensed kennels subject to the following conditions: 

a. Minimum lot size of the zoning district or three acres, whichever is greater. 

b. Residential dwelling unit(s) shall not be allowed as an accessory to a kennel. 

c. The licensed kennel operates for the purpose of overnight care or long-term care and not 
for daycare. 

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 3.318; Ord. No. 32-02072011-07, 2-7-2011; Ord. No. 06-08012011-07, 8-1-

2011) 

Page 6of6 

dgreene
Underline



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDINANCE  10-09112017 
  
BE IT ORDAINED, that the City Council hereby adopts a zoning ordinance text amendment to 
Article IV District Regulations, Division 2. Agriculture and Resource Protection District, Section 
6-145 Use Regulations, (b) Special Exceptions (16), to allow Kennels as a Special Exception in the 
Agricultural and Resource Protection Zone.  
 
DIVISION 2. - AGRICULTURE AND RESOURCE PROTECTION DISTRICT  
 
Sec. 60-144. - Purpose.  

The purposes of this district are to allow for conservation of natural resources and open space 
land, and to encourage agricultural, forestry, and certain types of recreational uses. It is declared to 
be in the public interest that these areas should be protected and conserved because of their 
natural, aesthetic and scenic value, the need to retain and preserve open space lands, their economic 
contribution to the city, and primarily because these areas are so remote from existing centers of 
development that any added uncontrolled growth could result in an economic burden on the city 
and its inhabitants. This section shall be construed so as to effectuate the purposes outline here and 
to prevent any attempt to establish uses which are inconsistent with these purposes or any attempt 
to evade the provisions of this division.  

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 3.31A)  

Sec. 60-145. - Use regulations.  
(a) Permitted uses. The following uses are permitted:  

(1) One-family detached dwellings, including manufactured housing subject to all the design standards, 
except the siting requirements of section 60-173, as set forth in article XII of this chapter, accessory 
to farming operations subject to the following restrictions:  

a. No certificate of occupancy shall be issued for any such farm residence until the barns, livestock 
pens, silos, or other such buildings or structures which are to be erected in connection with the 
proposed agricultural use as shown on the plans and specifications presented to the municipal 
officer charged with enforcement are substantially completed.  

b. In no case shall any farm residence constructed under the provisions of this section after the 
effective date of the amended ordinance from which this section is derived continue to be 
occupied as a residence if the principal agricultural use has been abandoned or reduced in 
scope below the minimum requirements as shown on the plans and specifications presented to 
the municipal officer charged with enforcement.  

c. Any residence constructed under this article shall not be converted to nonfarm residential use 
except by permission of the planning board based upon a finding that the abandonment or 



reduction in such use resulted from causes beyond the control of the applicant and not from 
any intention to circumvent the requirements of this article.  

(2) Buildings, equipment and machinery accessory to the principal use including, but not limited to: 
barns silos, storage buildings and farm automobile garages.  

(3) Forest products raised for harvest.  

(4) Field crop farms.  

(5) Row crop farms.  

(6) Orchard farms.  

(7) Truck gardens.  

(8) Plant and tree nurseries.  

(9) Greenhouses.  

(10) Handling, storage and sale of agriculture produce and processed agricultural products derived from 
produce grown on the premises.  

(11) Livestock operations including poultry farms, cattle farms, dairy farms, stud farms, hog farms, sheep 
ranches, other animal farms, including farms for raising fur-bearing animals.  

(12) Wayside stands.  

(13) Two-family dwellings which are created from the conversion of a one-family dwelling structure 
which was constructed prior to 1900.  

(b) Special exception uses. The following uses are permitted by special exception after approval by the 
planning board in accordance with the provisions of division 3 of article XVII of this chapter:  

(1) Sawmills and their customary accessory land uses and buildings incidental to the harvesting of forest 
products, subject to the following conditions:  

a. Sawmill and accessory activity shall not be detrimental to the neighborhood or the city by 
reason of special danger of fire or explosion, pollution of rivers or perennial streams or 
accumulation of refuse.  

b. Wood processing operation shall be located no closer than 75 feet from any river or perennial 
stream, 250 feet from any zoning district boundary or residential dwelling and shall be limited 
to four persons employed.  

c. Where natural vegetation is removed, it shall be replaced within six months with other 
vegetation which will be equally effective in retarding erosion and will preserve natural beauty.  

(2) Veterinary hospitals, where operated by licensed veterinarians, including offices and facilities for 
temporarily boarding animals.  

(3) Handling, storage and sale of agricultural services, equipment, and supplies accessory to the farming 
use.  

(4) Bona fide residences required for farm labor. Any residence constructed for farm labor shall not be 
converted to nonfarm residential use except by permission of the planning board based upon a 
finding that the abandonment or reduction in such use resulted from causes beyond the control of 
the applicant and not from any intention to circumvent the requirements of this division. The 
findings and the conditions upon which such altered use may be continued shall be made a part of 
the permanent records.  

(5) Recreational uses of land intended or designed for public use subject to the following conditions:  



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 
a. No such recreational use shall be expanded or extended so as to occupy additional land area 

greater than 20 percent of the original area or one acre, whichever is less; or by the 
construction of a structure or an addition to an existing structure by more than 900 square feet 
of additional floor space unless the owner or occupant first obtains approval of the planning 
board in the manner and upon the same terms as approvals of initial recreational uses.  

b. Any proposed new or expanded recreational use shall be completed on or before the estimated 
completion date except that the planning board may grant reasonable extension of time where 
good cause for the failure to complete is shown.  

(6) Any legally nonconforming summer camp or cottage may be rebuilt if destroyed by fire or other 
casualty, subject to the following conditions:  

a. Such reconstruction shall comply with all ordinances applicable to new construction. Such 
reconstruction need not, however, comply with zoning provisions which would otherwise be 
applicable except for the provisions of article XII of this chapter.  

b. In cases where no minimum setback is established by division 5 of article XII of this chapter an 
open yard space of at least ten feet between the building as reconstructed and each of the 
property lines shall be maintained.  

(7) Rifle, pistol, skeet or trap shooting ranges, public or private.  

(8) Cemeteries, subject to the following conditions:  

a. At least 20 acres in area.  

b. Not located in any environmental overlay district or over any known aquifer.  

(9) Municipal sanitary landfills, subject to the following conditions:  

a. Not located in any environmental overlay district or over any known aquifer.  

b. Provisions shall be made to avoid surface water and groundwater pollution.  

c. Provisions shall be made for frequent covering of deposited wastes with earth to counteract 
vermin, insects, odors, and windblown debris.  

(10) Radio, radar, television and radio telephone transmitting or broadcasting towers, but not studios or 
offices for such transmitting or broadcasting, provided that:  

a. Every such tower shall be installed in a location and manner that ensures its safe operation and 
the safety of the surrounding residents, building occupants, land uses and properties.  

b. In no case shall such tower be located less than one and one-half times its height from the 
nearest property line.  

(11) Wholesale nurseries, subject to the following conditions:  

a. At least one-half of the area of the lot (up to a maximum of three acres) is in active nursery 
production in a husband type manner.  

b. The plants and trees propagated, grown and nurtured in the nursery are used as the primary 
products by the owner/operator of the landscape service.  



(12) Processing and storage of compost and bulking agents from the municipal wastewater sewerage 
sludge facilities provided that:  

a. All compost and amendments are to be stored undercover or screened from the public way and 
abutting property as determined by the planning board.  

b. All federal, state and local ordinances and laws relating to the processing and storage of waste 
are complied with.  

c. An end-use plan must be filed as part of the planning board process.  

(13) Licensed hospice care facility provided that it shall be licensed by the state as a Medicare certificate 
hospice.  

(14) Slaughterhouse, stockyard, abattoir, dressing plant in compliance with state and federal regulations 
subject to the following conditions:  

a. The facility shall not be located within the Lake Auburn Watershed Overlay District, the 
Watershed of Taylor Pond, the Shoreland Overlay District or the Floodplain Overlay District.  

b. The proposed use shall not occupy more than 10,000 square feet of building area.  

c. The number of employees shall be limited to not more than 15.  

d. Accessory retail sales shall be limited to 10 percent of building area or 1,000 square feet, 
whichever is smaller.  

e. Hours of operation shall limited to between 6 a.m. and 8 p.m.  

(15) Compost operations, excluding municipal and industrial waste, to process products such as manure, 
bedding, animal mortalities, waste feed, produce, forestry by-products, leaves and yard trimmings in 
compliance with state and federal regulations, subject to the following conditions:  

a. All compost sites shall be evaluated for suitability by a properly qualified professional, including 
benchmark water testing prior to approval.  

b. Provisions shall be made to avoid surface and groundwater pollution.  

c. Provisions shall be made to counteract vermin, insects and odors.  

d. Must comply with all applicable state department of environmental protection and state 
department of agriculture rules and regulations and best management practices.  

e. Shall not be located within the Lake Auburn Watershed Overlay District.  

(16) Licensed kennels subject to the following conditions: 

a. Minimum lot size of the zoning district or three acres, whichever is greater. 
 

b. Residential dwelling unit(s) shall not be allowed as an accessory to a kennel.  
 

c. The licensed kennel operates for the purpose of overnight care or long-term care and not 
for daycare.  

 (Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 3.31B; Ord. No. 32-02072011-07, 2-7-2011; Ord. No. 06-08012011-07, 8-1-
2011)  

 
 
 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

 
 
 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  September 18, 2017 Order: 81-09112017 
 
Author:  Kelsey Earle, License Specialist 
 

 

Subject:  Automobile Graveyard/Junkyard permits renewals 
 
Information:  This is an annual renewal of currently existing Automobile Graveyard/Junkyards in Auburn. Reminder 
letters and applications were sent out 08/03/2017. Inspections have been made. Council approval is required for 
renewal of these licenses. Because this is a renewal, it does not require a public hearing. Inspections have been 
conducted by the Code and Fire Departments and have passed inspection with the condition by the Code office that a 
section of the fence be repaired.  
 
Title 30-A, Sec. 3754 states “Municipal officers or county commissioners, as provided for in section 3753, shall hold a 
public hearing before granting a permit to establish a new automobile graveyard, automobile recycling business or 
junkyard and may hold public hearings annually regarding the relicensing of these facilities”.  
 
 
Advantages:  Allows existing taxpaying businesses to continue operating as long as they meet requirements. Junkyards 
provide a special service; to both people searching for inexpensive car parts and to the environment, since they reuse 
valuable vehicle parts that would otherwise go to waste. 
 
 
Disadvantages: Junkyards can potentially be a source of pollution if they are not properly maintained and regulated. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: N/A 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Consider renewal. 

 
Previous Meetings and History: Annual Renewal 

 
Attachments:  

1. Automobile Graveyard/Junkyard applications 
2. Inspection Memo – Eric Cousens (Economic and Community Development) 
3. Inspection Memo – David O’Connell (Fire Department) 
4. 30-A §3753, 30-A §3754 
5. Order 81-09112017  

 





City of Auburn, Maine 

Office of Economic & Community Development 
 www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  
 Auburn, Maine 04210  
 207.333.6601 

 

  
 
 

Page 1 of 1 

 

To:   Mayor and City Council 

From: Eric J. Cousens, Deputy Director of Economic and Community Development 

Re: 2017 Junkyard License Inspections  

Date: August 24, 2017 

The City Clerk requested that this office inspect licensed junkyards that have applied for license 

renewals prior to the Councils consideration of their application.  Inspections were completed during 

the month of August and staff found the following: 

In general there are still more cars stored at junkyards in Auburn than usual.  It is normal to see 

fluctuations in storage as worldwide prices for scrap metal fluctuate.  I was told this year that steel 

prices are rising and they are starting to sell more of their scrap cars again.   

Randy’s Auto Parts - 899 Broad St. - No concerns.  The site is meeting junkyard requirements.   

M & P Auto, Inc. - 227 Merrow Rd. - No Concerns.  The site is meeting junkyard requirements.   

Morris Auto Parts - 940 Washington ST. N – Over the last few years the inspections revealed that there 

were some operational violations and we have worked closely with this business since then.   They have 

made substantive management and operational changes and are operating mostly in compliance with 

the applicable junkyard requirements.  They need to make some repairs to their screening along 

Washington Street for full compliance and they have promised that they will do so by September 8th.   

Prolerized New England Company – 522 Washington Street- No concerns.  The site is meeting junkyard 

requirements.   

Isadore T. Miller Co. – 78 &80 Hotel Road - No concerns.  The site is mostly empty and still meeting 

junkyard requirements.   

Ty Auto - 249 Merrow Road - No concerns.  The site is mostly cleared and still meeting junkyard 

requirements.   



Maine Revised Statutes

Title 30-A: MUNICIPALITIES AND COUNTIES

Chapter 183: ECONOMIC REGULATION

§3753. PERMIT REQUIRED
A person may not establish, operate or maintain an automobile graveyard, automobile recycling business

or junkyard without first obtaining a nontransferable permit from the municipal officers of the municipality
in which the automobile graveyard, automobile recycling business or junkyard is to be located, or from
the county commissioners of the county of any unorganized territory in which the automobile graveyard,
automobile recycling business or junkyard is to be located. Permits issued to an automobile graveyard
or junkyard under this section are valid until the first day of the following year; except that, beginning in
calendar year 2004, permits issued to an automobile graveyard or junkyard under this section are valid until
the first day of October of the following year. Permits issued to an automobile recycling business under this
section are valid for 5 years from the date of issuance and are renewable provided that the permit holder
furnishes a sworn statement, annually, on the anniversary date of the granting of the permit, that the facility
complies with the standards of operation applicable at the time of issuance of the permit. A person operating
a business that involves the recycling of automobiles may operate under a permit for an automobile graveyard
or a permit for an automobile recycling business. [2003, c. 312, §7 (AMD).]

SECTION HISTORY
1987, c. 737, §§A2,C106 (NEW).  1989, c. 6, (AMD).  1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD).
1989, c. 104, §§C8,10 (AMD).  1993, c. 173, §4 (AMD).  2003, c. 312, §7
(AMD).

The State of Maine claims a copyright in its codified statutes. If you intend to republish this material, we require that you include the
following disclaimer in your publication:

All copyrights and other rights to statutory text are reserved by the State of Maine. The text included in this publication reflects changes
made through the Second Regular Session of the 127th Maine Legislature and is current through October 1, 2016. The text is subject to
change without notice. It is a version that has not been officially certified by the Secretary of State. Refer to the Maine Revised Statutes
Annotated and supplements for certified text.

The Office of the Revisor of Statutes also requests that you send us one copy of any statutory publication you may produce. Our goal
is not to restrict publishing activity, but to keep track of who is publishing what, to identify any needless duplication and to preserve
the State's copyright rights.

PLEASE NOTE: The Revisor's Office cannot perform research for or provide legal advice or interpretation of Maine law to the public.
If you need legal assistance, please contact a qualified attorney.

Generated
10.13.2016   |  1



Maine Revised Statutes

Title 30-A: MUNICIPALITIES AND COUNTIES

Chapter 183: ECONOMIC REGULATION

§3754. HEARINGS
Municipal officers or county commissioners, as provided for in section 3753, shall hold a public hearing

before granting a permit to establish a new automobile graveyard, automobile recycling business or junkyard
and may hold public hearings annually regarding the relicensing of these facilities. Municipal officers or
county commissioners shall require an applicant to provide proof of mailing the notice of the application
to all abutting property owners. Municipal officers or county commissioners shall also post a notice of the
hearing at least 7 and not more than 14 days before the hearing in at least 2 public places in the municipality
or unorganized territory and publish a notice in one newspaper having general circulation in the municipality
or unorganized territory in which the automobile graveyard, automobile recycling business or junkyard is
to be located. The municipal officers or county commissioners shall give written or electronic notice of the
application to establish a new automobile graveyard or automobile recycling business to the automobile
dealer licensing section of the Department of the Secretary of State, Bureau of Motor Vehicles by mailing
a copy of the application at least 7 and not more than 30 days before the hearing. The municipal officers
or county commissioners shall give written notice of the application to the public water supplier if the
application is for an automobile graveyard, automobile recycling business or junkyard located within the
supplier's source water supply area. The notice may be given by mailing a copy of the application at least 7
and not more than 14 days before the hearing. [2005, c. 424, §2 (AMD).]

SECTION HISTORY
1987, c. 737, §§A2,C106 (NEW).  1989, c. 6, (AMD).  1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD).
1989, c. 104, §§C8,10 (AMD).  1993, c. 173, §4 (AMD).  1999, c. 761, §5
(AMD).  2003, c. 312, §8 (AMD).  2005, c. 424, §2 (AMD).

The State of Maine claims a copyright in its codified statutes. If you intend to republish this material, we require that you include the
following disclaimer in your publication:

All copyrights and other rights to statutory text are reserved by the State of Maine. The text included in this publication reflects changes
made through the Second Regular Session of the 127th Maine Legislature and is current through October 1, 2016. The text is subject to
change without notice. It is a version that has not been officially certified by the Secretary of State. Refer to the Maine Revised Statutes
Annotated and supplements for certified text.

The Office of the Revisor of Statutes also requests that you send us one copy of any statutory publication you may produce. Our goal
is not to restrict publishing activity, but to keep track of who is publishing what, to identify any needless duplication and to preserve
the State's copyright rights.

PLEASE NOTE: The Revisor's Office cannot perform research for or provide legal advice or interpretation of Maine law to the public.
If you need legal assistance, please contact a qualified attorney.

Generated
10.13.2016   |  1









James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 81-09112017  
  
ORDERED, that the City Council hereby approves the annual renewal request for an Auto 
Graveyard/Junkyard permit for Don’s No Preference Towing of L/A, Inc., dba Morris Auto Parts, 
940 Washington St. North. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:     9/18/2017  Order: 89-09182017 
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk   
 

Subject:  Designating Official Voting Delegates for Auburn to the Maine Municipal Association (MMA) Annual Business 
Meeting 
 
Information:  The Maine Municipal Association’s Annual Business meeting will take place on Oct. 4, 2017 at 1:30 PM in 
Augusta.  Municipal officers may designate their municipality’s voting representative and alternate. Please see the 
attached memo. 
 

 
Advantages:  Provides Auburn representation 
 
 
Disadvantages: None 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Recommend passage 

 
Previous Meetings and History: N/A 

 
Attachments: Memo from MMA, MMA Annual Business Meeting Agenda, MMA Voting Delegate Credential Form, and 
Order 89-09182017 
 









James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 89-09182017 
 

ORDERED, that the City Council hereby designates Robert Stone as the official Voting Delegate and 
Denise Clavette as alternate Voting Delegate for Auburn to the Maine Municipal Association Annual 
Business Meeting scheduled for Wednesday, October 4, 2017 at the Augusta Civic Center, Augusta, 
Maine. 

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  September 18, 2017  Order:  90-09182017    
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 

 

Subject:  Appointing Jody Durisko to the Lewiston-Auburn Transit Committee (LATC)  
 
Information:  Passage of this order would be to confirm the appointment of Jody Durisko, Executive Assistant to City 
Manager to the Lewiston-Auburn Transit Committee, a seat previously held by former Karen Veilleux with a term 
expiration of 7/1/2019.  

 
Advantages:  It fills this Auburn seat and provides representation of the viewpoints of the city. 
 
Disadvantages: None.  

 
City Budgetary Impacts: N/A 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Recommend passage. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: N/A 

 
Attachments: Order 90-09182017 
 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 90-09182017 
  
  ORDERED, that the City Council hereby confirms the appointment of Jody Durisko, to the 
Lewiston-Auburn Transit Committee (LATC) with a term expiration of 07/01/2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Financial Services 

60 Court Street • Suite 411 • Auburn, ME 04210 
(207) 333-6600 Voice • (207) 333-6601 Automated • (207) 333-6620 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      
 

 
 
 
 
 
TO:    Peter Crichton, City Manager 

FROM:   Jill Eastman, Finance Director 

REF:    August 2017 Financial Report 

DATE:  September 12, 2017 

 
The following is a discussion regarding the significant variances found in the City’s August financial 
report. Please note that although the monthly financial report contains amounts reported by the 
School Department, this discussion is limited to the City’s financial results and does not attempt to 
explain any variances for the School Department. 
 
The City has completed its second month of the current fiscal year. As a guideline for tracking 
purposes, revenues and expenditures should amount to approximately 16.66% of the annual budget.  
However, not all costs and revenues are distributed evenly throughout the year; individual line items 
can vary based upon cyclical activity.    
 
Balance Sheet 
 
The following are significant variances from July: 
 

A. Taxes Receivable-Current and Deferred Revenue have both decreased due to the tax 
payments received in August. These two accounts are directly related to each other. 

 
Revenues 
 
Revenues, for the City, collected through August 31st were $7,533,651, or 12.62%, of the budget, 
which is lower than last year at this time by 0.03%. The accounts listed below are noteworthy. 
 

 
A. Excise taxes of $679,517-up $16,247 over last year. 
B. Property tax revenue of $5,223,716 an increase over last year of $28,457. 

 

 



 
 
 

 2 

C. State Revenue Sharing for the month of August is 16.77% or $253,039. This is an 
increase over last year of $18,185. 
 

D. Homestead Exemption for the month of August is $821,845 or $252,757 more than 
last year.  

 
 

Expenditures 
 
City expenditures through August 31st were $4,469,533, or 10.71%, of the budget as compared to 
last year at $4,508,103 or 11.33%.  Noteworthy variances are: 
 

Most of the operating departments are in line with last year at this time. LA 911 is 
lower than last year due to the timing of the subsidy payments.  

 
Investments  
 
This section contains an investment schedule as of August 31st with a comparison to August 31st.  
Currently the City’s funds are earning an average interest rate of .72%. 
 
        Respectfully submitted, 

         
          
 Jill M. Eastman 
 Finance Director 



 UNAUDITED UNAUDITED AUDITED
August 31 July 31 Increase JUNE 30

2017 2017 (Decrease) 2016
ASSETS

CASH 12,768,632$         9,642,275$         3,126,357$           11,951,131$       
RECEIVABLES -                        
  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 1,648,903             2,312,484           (663,581)               2,429,419           
  TAXES RECEIVABLE-CURRENT 40,802,001           45,861,686         (5,059,685)            37,898                
  DELINQUENT TAXES 682,599                684,621              (2,022)                   571,005              
  TAX LIENS 1,375,385             1,456,025           (80,640)                 1,721,395           
  NET DUE TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS 2,832,645             3,606,954           (774,309)               266,370              

 
TOTAL ASSETS 60,110,165$         63,564,045$       (3,453,880)$          16,977,218$       

 
 

LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES  
 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (29,147)$               (411,916)$           382,769$              (1,935,471)$        
PAYROLL LIABILITIES (1,534,320)            (1,828,116)          293,796                -                      
ACCRUED PAYROLL -                        (2,501,981)          2,501,981             (2,329,832)          
STATE FEES PAYABLE (55,334)                 (66,009)               10,675                  -                      
ESCROWED AMOUNTS (2,826)                   (2,826)                 0                           (6,039)                 
DEFERRED REVENUE (42,694,504)          (47,942,781)        5,248,277             (1,860,686)          

 
     TOTAL LIABILITIES (44,316,130)$        (52,753,629)$      8,437,499$           (6,132,028)$        

 
FUND BALANCE - UNASSIGNED (14,703,082)$        (9,719,463)$        (4,983,619)$          (8,018,394)$        
FUND BALANCE - RESTRICTED FOR  
     WORKERS COMP & UNEMPLOYMENT 776,017                776,017              -                        

FUND BALANCE - RESTRICTED (1,866,970)            (1,866,970)          0                           (2,826,796)          
 

     TOTAL FUND BALANCE (15,794,035)$        (10,810,416)$      (4,983,619)$          (10,845,190)$      
 

  
     TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE (60,110,165)$        (63,564,045)$      3,453,880$           (16,977,218)$      

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
 BALANCE SHEET - CITY GENERAL FUND, WC AND UNEMPLOYMENT FUND 

AS of August 2017, July 2017, and June 2016 



REVENUES - GENERAL FUND COMPARATIVE
THROUGH August 31, 2017 VS August 31, 2016

ACTUAL ACTUAL
FY 2018 REVENUES % OF FY 2017 REVENUES % OF  

REVENUE SOURCE BUDGET THRU AUG 2017 BUDGET BUDGET THRU AUG 2016 BUDGET VARIANCE
TAXES
  PROPERTY TAX REVENUE- 48,061,530$           5,223,716$        10.87% 46,032,435$     5,195,259$        11.29% 28,457$            
  PRIOR YEAR TAX REVENUE -$                        217,008$            -$                 179,822$            37,186$            
  HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION REIMBURSEMENT 1,015,000$             821,845$           80.97% 750,000$          569,088$           75.88% 252,757$          
  EXCISE 3,810,000$             679,517$           17.84% 3,365,000$       663,270$           19.71% 16,247$            
  PENALTIES & INTEREST 150,000$                14,727$             9.82% 150,000$          17,499$             11.67% (2,772)$            

     TOTAL TAXES 53,036,530$           6,956,813$        13.12% 50,297,435$     6,624,938$        13.17% 331,875$          
  

LICENSES AND PERMITS   
  BUSINESS 62,000$                  3,410$               5.50% 48,000$            6,075$               12.66% (2,665)$            
  NON-BUSINESS 345,000$                23,059$             6.68% 427,384$          100,256$           23.46% (77,197)$          

     TOTAL LICENSES 407,000$                26,469$             6.50% 475,384$          106,331$           22.37% (79,862)$          
  

INTERGOVERNMENTAL ASSISTANCE   
  STATE-LOCAL ROAD ASSISTANCE 400,000$                -$                   0.00% 400,000$          -$                   0.00% -$                 
  STATE REVENUE SHARING 1,509,117$             253,039$           16.77% 1,468,313$       234,854$           15.99% 18,185$            
  WELFARE REIMBURSEMENT 95,000$                  22,979$             24.19% 59,000$            -$                   0.00% 22,979$            
  OTHER STATE AID 32,000$                  472$                  1.48% 22,000$            -$                   0.00% 472$                 
  CITY OF LEWISTON 228,384$                -$                   0.00% 160,000$          -$                   0.00% -$                 
     TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL ASSISTANCE 2,264,501$             276,491$           12.21% 2,109,313$       234,854$           11.13% 41,637$            

  
CHARGE FOR SERVICES   
  GENERAL GOVERNMENT 144,440$                22,890$             15.85% 132,640$          14,315$             10.79% 8,575$              
  PUBLIC SAFETY 236,277$                5,014$               2.12% 139,077$          11,340$             8.15% (6,326)$            
  EMS TRANSPORT 1,250,000$             160,137$           12.81% 1,250,000$       183,491$           14.68% (23,354)$          

     TOTAL CHARGE FOR SERVICES 1,630,717$             188,042$           11.53% 1,521,717$       209,146$           13.74% (21,104)$          
  

FINES   
  PARKING TICKETS & MISC FINES 70,000$                  6,636$               9.48% 65,000$            10,441$             16.06% (3,805)$            

   
MISCELLANEOUS    
  INVESTMENT INCOME 32,000$                  5,200$               16.25% 10,000$            2,676$               26.76% 2,524$              
  RENTS 35,000$                  10,923$             31.21% 18,000$            6,015$               33.42% 4,908$              
  UNCLASSIFIED 10,000$                  13,515$             135.15% 10,000$            15,142$             151.42% (1,627)$            
  COMMERCIAL SOLID WASTE FEES -$                        11,576$              -$                 10,845$              731$                 
  SALE OF PROPERTY 20,000$                  2,358$               11.79% 20,000$            10,239$             51.20% (7,881)$            
  RECREATION PROGRAMS/ARENA  -$                 -$                    -$                 
  MMWAC HOST FEES 215,000$                35,628$             16.57% 210,000$          35,109$             16.72% 519$                 
  TRANSFER IN: TIF 1,287,818$             -$                   0.00% 1,537,818$       -$                   0.00% -$                 
  TRANSFER IN: REC SPEC REVENUE 54,718$                  -$                   0.00% 54,718$            0.00% -$                 
  ENERGY EFFICIENCY  -$                 1,625$                (1,625)$            
  CDBG 214,430$                -$                   0.00% 254,127$          -$                   0.00% -$                 
  UTILITY REIMBURSEMENT 27,500$                  -$                   0.00% 27,500$            -$                   0.00% -$                 
  CITY FUND BALANCE CONTRIBUTION 412,500$                -$                   0.00% 825,000$          -$                   0.00% -$                 

     TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 2,308,966$             79,199$             3.43% 2,967,163$       81,651$             2.75% (2,452)$            

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUES 59,717,714$           7,533,651$        12.62% 57,436,012$     7,267,361$        12.65% 266,290$          

SCHOOL REVENUES
  EDUCATION SUBSIDY 22,039,568$           1,779,148$        8.07% 21,373,337$     1,694,197$        7.93% 84,951$            
  EDUCATION 811,744$                8,337$               1.03% 814,540$          40,316$             4.95% (31,979)$          
  SCHOOL FUND BALANCE CONTRIBUTION 906,882$                -$                   0.00% 906,882$          -$                   0.00% -$                 

TOTAL SCHOOL 23,758,194$           1,787,485$        7.52% 23,094,759$     1,734,513$        7.51% 52,972$            

GRAND TOTAL REVENUES 83,475,908$           9,321,136$        11.17% 80,530,771$     9,001,874$        11.18% 319,261$          

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE



Unaudited  Unaudited  
FY 2018 EXP % OF FY 2017 EXP % OF

DEPARTMENT BUDGET THRU AUG 2017 BUDGET BUDGET THRU AUG 2016 BUDGET VARIANCE
ADMINISTRATION
   MAYOR AND COUNCIL 80,300$                2,785$                3.47% 78,464$          10,265$              13.08% (7,480)$         
   CITY MANAGER 581,170$              78,127$              13.44% 378,880$        50,500$              13.33% 27,627$        
   CITY CLERK 181,332$              25,676$              14.16% 177,906$        20,333$              11.43% 5,343$          
   FINANCIAL SERVICES 675,239$              105,206$            15.58% 637,754$        91,651$              14.37% 13,555$        
   HUMAN RESOURCES 156,887$              27,326$              17.42% 150,435$        13,565$              9.02% 13,761$        
   INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 531,551$              101,375$            19.07% 479,324$        95,305$              19.88% 6,070$          
   LEGAL SERVICES -$                          -$                         45,650$          10,934$              23.95% (10,934)$       

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 2,206,479$           340,495$            15.43% 1,948,413$     292,553$            15.01% 47,942$        

COMMUNITY SERVICES
   ECONOMIC & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 1,717,028$           145,787$            8.49% 1,938,437$     150,433$            7.76% (4,646)$         
   HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES 220,870$              49,589$              22.45% 171,474$        28,925$              16.87% 20,664$        
   RECREATION & SPECIAL EVENTS* 388,581$              41,165$              10.59% 341,772$        42,222$              12.35% (1,057)$         
   PUBLIC LIBRARY 998,189$              166,365$            16.67% 979,516$        170,867$            17.44% (4,502)$         

TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICES 3,324,668$           402,906$            12.12% 3,431,199$     392,447$            11.44% 10,459$        
 

FISCAL SERVICES
   DEBT SERVICE 6,366,533$           90,807$              1.43% 6,406,845$     90,807$              1.42% -$                  
   FACILITIES 640,201$              165,887$            25.91% 645,756$        308,325$            47.75% (142,438)$     
   WORKERS COMPENSATION 555,164$              -$                        0.00% 522,088$        -$                        0.00% -$                  
   WAGES & BENEFITS 5,960,970$           924,743$            15.51% 5,274,528$     895,144$            16.97% 29,599$        
   EMERGENCY RESERVE (10108062-670000) 415,454$              -$                        0.00% 375,289$        -$                        0.00% -$                  

TOTAL FISCAL SERVICES 13,938,322$         1,181,437$         8.48% 13,224,506$   1,294,276$         9.79% (112,839)$     

PUBLIC SAFETY
   FIRE DEPARTMENT 4,227,575$           710,100$            16.80% 4,049,396$     602,649$            14.88% 107,451$      
   FIRE EMS 708,828$              144,863$            20.44% 590,997$        160,388$            27.14% (15,525)$       
   POLICE DEPARTMENT 4,043,998$           571,897$            14.14% 3,875,113$     499,671$            12.89% 72,226$        

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 8,980,401$           1,426,860$         15.89% 8,515,506$     1,262,708$         14.83% 164,152$      

PUBLIC WORKS
   PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT 4,611,116$           529,128$            11.48% 4,496,349$     523,890$            11.65% 5,238$          
   SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL* 964,118$              75,136$              7.79% 932,689$        73,418$              7.87% 1,718$          
   WATER AND SEWER 632,716$              158,179$            25.00% 599,013$        146,627$            24.48% 11,552$        

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 6,207,950$           762,443$            12.28% 6,028,051$     743,935$            12.34% 18,508$        

INTERGOVERNMENTAL PROGRAMS
   AUBURN-LEWISTON AIRPORT 167,800$              164,992$            98.33% 106,000$        26,500$              25.00% 138,492$      
   E911 COMMUNICATION CENTER 1,088,857$           451$                   0.04% 1,088,857$     295,425$            27.13% (294,974)$     
   LATC-PUBLIC TRANSIT 189,949$              189,949$            100.00% 182,244$        182,244$            100.00% 7,705$          
   LA ARTS -$                          -$                         -$                   -$                         -$                  
   TAX SHARING 270,000$              -$                        0.00% 270,000$        18,015$              6.67% (18,015)$       

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 1,716,606$           355,392$            20.70% 1,647,101$     522,184$            31.70% (166,792)$     

COUNTY TAX 2,296,224$           -$                        0.00% 2,167,824$     -$                        0.00% -$                  
TIF (10108058-580000) 3,049,803$           -$                        0.00% 2,824,803$     -$                        0.00% -$                  
OVERLAY -$                          -$                         -$                   -$                        0.00% -$                  

-$                  
TOTAL CITY DEPARTMENTS 41,720,453$         4,469,533$         10.71% 39,787,403$   4,508,103$         11.33% (38,570)$       

EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 41,755,455$         1,391,485$         3.33% 40,743,368$   1,343,542$         3.30% 47,943$        
  

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 83,475,908$         5,861,018$         7.02% 80,530,771$   5,851,645$         7.27% 9,373$          

 CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
EXPENDITURES - GENERAL FUND COMPARATIVE

THROUGH August 31, 2017 VS August 31, 2016



CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
INVESTMENT SCHEDULE

AS OF August 31, 2017

BALANCE BALANCE INTEREST
INVESTMENT FUND August 31, 2017 July 31, 2017 RATE

ANDROSCOGGIN BANK 449 CAPITAL PROJECTS 2,187,539.55$              2,186,263.46$              0.45%
ANDROSCOGGIN BANK 502 SR-TIF 1,009,455.25$              1,008,866.42$              0.45%
ANDROSCOGGIN BANK 836 GENERAL FUND 983,729.99$                 3,981,466.15$              0.45%
ANDROSCOGGIN BANK 801 WORKERS COMP 50,428.93$                   50,399.52$                   0.45%
ANDROSCOGGIN BANK 748 UNEMPLOYMENT 50,428.82$                   50,399.41$                   0.45%
ANDROSCOGGIN BANK 684 EMS CAPITAL RESERVE 331,680.61$                 331,487.16$                 0.45%
NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 CAPITAL PROJECTS 750,000.00$                 750,000.00$                 1.15%
NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 GENERAL FUND 500,000.00$                 500,000.00$                 0.70%
NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 GENERAL FUND 500,000.00$                 500,000.00$                 1.00%
NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 GENERAL FUND 500,000.00$                 500,000.00$                 1.15%
NORTHERN CAPITAL 02155 GENERAL FUND 500,000.00$                 500,000.00$                 1.25%

GRAND TOTAL 6,363,263.15$              10,358,882.12$            0.72%



Beginning Ending
Balance Balance

08/01/17 New Charges Payments Adjustments Write-Offs 8/31/2017

Bluecross 8,111.15$       5,319.60$        (5,475.13)$      (4,872.25)$     3,083.37$      
Intercept 200.00$          (200.00)$         -$                
Medicare 63,381.18$     121,672.00$    (39,529.88)$    (55,181.71)$  90,341.59$    
Medicaid 31,699.95$     33,361.80$      (11,965.66)$    (12,712.88)$  40,383.21$    
Other/Commercial 84,675.75$     31,967.40$      (22,742.64)$    (11,404.45)$  82,496.06$    
Patient 534,738.09$  20,029.80$      (6,292.68)$      (2,254.12)$     (1,294.43)$     544,926.66$  
Worker's Comp 1,843.79$       685.00$           (872.40)$         1,656.39$      

TOTAL 724,649.91$  213,035.60$   (87,078.39)$   (86,425.41)$  (1,294.43)$    762,887.28$  

August 2017

EMS BILLING 
SUMMARY OF ACTIVITY

July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2018
Report as of August 31, 2017



July August % of
2017 2017 Adjustment Totals Total

No Insurance Information -$                 0.00%
Bluecross 7,616.80$       5,319.60$       873.80$         13,810.20$    3.56%
Intercept 200.00$          200.00$          0.05%
Medicare 93,981.80$     121,672.00$  (15,883.80)$  199,770.00$  51.51%
Medicaid 29,998.80$     33,361.80$    (190.20)$        63,170.40$    16.29%
Other/Commercial 26,335.20$     31,967.40$    16,778.60$    75,081.20$    19.36%
Patient 15,784.20$     20,029.80$    (1,578.40)$    34,235.60$    8.83%
Worker's Comp 872.40$          685.00$          1,557.40$       0.40%

TOTAL 174,789.20$  213,035.60$  (0.00)$             387,824.80$  100.00%

July August % of
2017 2017 Adjustment Totals Total

No Insurance Information 0 0.00%
Bluecross 9 7 16 3.25%
Intercept 2 2 0.41%
Medicare 117 151 268 54.36%
Medicaid 39 44 83 16.84%
Other/Commercial 36 41 77 15.62%
Patient 20 25 45 9.13%
Worker's Comp 1 1 2 0.41%

TOTAL 224 269 0 493 100.00%

TOTAL REVENUE COLLECTED AS OF 08/31/17 $160,137.47.
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AS OF 08/31/17 $144,862.54.

Report as of August 31, 2017
July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2018

EMS BILLING 
BREAKDOWN -TOTAL CHARGES

July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2018

EMS BILLING 
BREAKDOWN -TOTAL COUNT

Report as of August 31, 2017



Current 31-60 61-90 91-120 121+ days Totals

Bluecross 3,128.21$       78% 669.60$          17% -$                 0% 671.00$          17% (443.47)$         -11% 4,025.34$            0.53%
Intercept -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                      0.00%
Medicare 50,031.71$     96% 685.00$          1% 1,324.68$       3% 142.17$          0% (294.70)$         -1% 51,888.86$          6.80%
Medicaid 38,040.90$     70% 6,398.19$       12% 3,258.99$       6% 1,413.65$       3% 5,462.50$       10% 54,574.23$          7.15%
Other/Commercial 32,276.16$     42% 16,368.62$     21% 5,971.35$       8% 5,791.29$       8% 16,728.07$     22% 77,135.49$          10.11%
Patient 37,366.50$     7% 27,599.86$     5% 16,127.14$     3% 19,651.40$     3% 473,833.46$  82% 574,578.36$       75.32%
Worker's Comp 685.00$          100% -$                 -$                 -$                 0% -$                 685.00$               0.09%

TOTAL 161,528.48$  51,721.27$     26,682.16$     27,669.51$     495,285.86$  762,887.28$       

21% 7% 3% 4% 65% 100% 100.00%

EMS BILLING 
AGING REPORT

July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018
Report as of August 31, 2017



CITY OF AUBURN
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
As of August 31, 2017

. 1902 1905 1910 1913 1914 1915 1917 1922 1926 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931
Winter Community Police Fitness Oak Hill Fire Training Wellness Walmart Healthy Insurance Fire 211

Riverwatch Festival Service Equipment Cemeteries Building Grant Risk/Homeless Androscoggin Reimbursement Vending Prevention Fairview Donations
Fund Balance 7/1/17 972,422.92$    (1,530.30)$              4,380.34$          5,932.53$            27,343.39$           (1,488.84)$           4,582.27$            6,378.18$            1,784.05$              925.21$                 (83.88)$                4,791.12$           (566,303.71)$          2,069.13$           

Revenues FY18 15,003.63$      134.00$             200.00$                 60.94$                  247.00$               

Expenditures FY18 165.00$                840.00$                 111.29$               

Fund Balance 6/30/18 987,426.55$   (1,530.30)$              4,514.34$          5,932.53$            27,543.39$           (1,488.84)$           4,417.27$            6,439.12$            944.05$                 925.21$                 51.83$                 4,791.12$           (566,303.71)$          2,069.13$           

2003 2005 2006 2007 2008 2010 2013 2014 2019 2020 2025 2030 2032 2033
Byrne Seatbelt Homeland State Drug OUI Speed Law Enforcement Community Safe School/
JAG MDOT PEACE Grant Security Money Grant Grant Training CDBG Cords Parking HEAPP Health (COPS)

Fund Balance 7/1/17 2,808.57$        (300,767.41)$         4,155.42$          2,197.62$            (73,633.75)$          14,432.07$          6,210.37$            8,831.00$            (5,669.72)$             4,323,336.57$      29,316.61$          11,690.86$         (4,994.50)$               (15,906.07)$       

Revenues FY18 -$                  25.00$                  1,670.00$              8,053.83$              244.80$               28,112.00$         

Expenditures FY18 80.23$               315.00$                3,024.00$            3,195.00$            130,231.12$         59,302.04$         

Fund Balance 6/30/18 2,808.57$        (300,767.41)$         4,075.19$          2,197.62$            (73,633.75)$          14,142.07$          3,186.37$            5,636.00$            (3,999.72)$            4,201,159.28$      29,561.41$         (19,499.18)$       (4,994.50)$              (15,906.07)$       

2037 2038 2040 2041 2044 2045 2046 2048 2050 2052 2053 2054 2055 2056
Bulletproof Community Great Falls Blanche Federal Drug Forest Joint Land Use TD Tree Project Nature St Louis EMS Transport Work4ME- Lake Auburn

Vests Action Team TV Stevens Money Management Study Days Grant Lifesaver Conservancy Bells Capital Reserve PAL Neighborhood
Fund Balance 7/1/17 8,478.66$        7,206.21$               45,319.88$        47,037.73$          16,988.54$           4,436.52$            0.57$                    -$                      150.00$                 975.05$                 2,357.75$            331,362.88$       (13,692.41)$            125.00$              

Revenues FY18 3,940.00$            386.42$                 124.28$               

Expenditures FY18 863.56$                3,962.49$                

Fund Balance 6/30/18 8,478.66$        7,206.21$               45,319.88$       50,114.17$          17,374.96$           4,436.52$            0.57$                    -$                      150.00$                 975.05$                 2,357.75$            331,487.16$      (17,654.90)$            125.00$              

2057 2058 2059 2060 2201 2500
ASPCA Barker Mills Distracted My Life EDI Parks &
Grant Greenway Driving My Choice JJAG Grant Recreation

Fund Balance 7/1/17 800.00$            (2,597.43)$              301.00$             -$                      (1,484,407.18)$    191,966.40$        

Revenues FY18 62,946.36$          

Expenditures FY18 2,496.00$          2,000.00$            100,219.37$        

Fund Balance 6/30/18 800.00$           (2,597.43)$              (2,195.00)$        (2,000.00)$           (1,484,407.18)$    154,693.39$        

2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 2600 Total
Tambrands J Enterprises Tambrands II J & A Properties Formed Fiber Mall Downtown Safe Handling Auburn Industrial Auburn Plaza Auburn Plaza II Webster School Bedard Pharm Slapshot LLC Hartt  Transport Special

TIF 4 TIF 5 TIF 6 TIF 7 TIF 8 TIF 9 TIF 10 TIF 11 TIF 12 TIF 13 TIF 14 TIF 16 TIF 17 TIF 18 TIF 19 Revenues
Fund Balance 7/1/17 (8,073.02)$       14,500.44$             (365,270.76)$    2,558.27$            30,486.17$           149,591.94$        (4,529.96)$           183.21$                (350,651.92)$        (37,076.39)$          9,722.38$            360.91$               31,366.79$              47,165.25$         (5.40)$                 3,140,347.13$   

Revenues FY18 121,148.26$      

Expenditures FY18 9,084.78$            315,889.88$      

Fund Balance 6/30/18 (8,073.02)$       14,500.44$             (365,270.76)$    2,558.27$            30,486.17$           149,591.94$        (13,614.74)$         183.21$                (350,651.92)$        (37,076.39)$          9,722.38$            360.91$              31,366.79$              47,165.25$        (5.40)$                 2,945,605.51$   



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Financial Services 

60 Court Street • Suite 411 • Auburn, ME 04210 
(207) 333-6600 Voice • (207) 333-6601 Automated • (207) 333-6620 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      
 

To: Peter Crichton, City Manager 
From: Jill Eastman, Finance Director 
Re: Arena Financial Reports for August 31, 2017 
 
Attached you will find a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of Activities and budget to actual 
reports for Norway Savings Bank Arena for revenue and expenditures as of August 31, 2017. 
 
The Norway Savings Bank Arena report now includes a budget to actual comparison with last fiscal year 
for both revenues and expenditures. 
 
NORWAY SAVINGS BANK ARENA 
 
Statement of Net Assets: 
The Statement of Net Assets lists current assets, noncurrent assets, liabilities and net assets and shows a 
comparison to the previous month, in this case, July 31, 2017.  
 
Current Assets: 
As of the end of August 2017 the total current assets of Norway Savings Bank Arena were ($738,359). 
These consisted of cash and cash equivalents of $91,181, accounts receivable of $81,616, and an 
interfund payable of $911,156, which means that Norway owes the General Fund $911,156 at the end of 
August.  
 
Noncurrent Assets: 
Norway’s noncurrent assets are equipment that was purchased, less depreciation (depreciation is 
posted at year end). The total value of the noncurrent assets as of August 31, 2017 was $318,203.  
 
Liabilities: 
Norway Arena had no accounts payable as of August 31, 2017.  
 
Statement of Activities: 
 
The statement of activities shows the current operating revenue collected for the fiscal year and the 
operating expenses as well as any nonoperating revenue and expenses. 
 
The operating revenues for Norway Arena through August 2017 are $191,572. This revenue comes from 
the concessions, sign advertisements, pro shop lease, youth programming, shinny hockey, public skating 
and ice rentals. 
 
The operating expenses for Norway Arena through August 2017 were $200,643. These expenses include 
personnel costs, supplies, utilities, repairs, rent, capital purchases and maintenance.  
 
As of August 2017 Norway Arena has an operating loss of $9,071 compared to the August 2016 
operating loss of $59,626.  
 
As of August 31, 2017 Norway Arena has a increase in net assets of $9,071. 
 
The budget to actual reports for revenue and expenditures, with comparison to the same period last 
year show that revenue for FY18 is $59,411 more than in FY17 and expenditures in FY18 are $8,856 
more than last year in August. 



August 31, July 31, Increase/
2017 2017 (Decrease)

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 91,181$           91,189$        (8)$                  
Interfund receivables (911,156)$       (862,447)$     (48,709)$         
Prepaid Rent -$                  -$                    
Accounts receivable 81,616             101,558        (19,942)$         

Total current assets (738,359)         (669,700)       (68,659)           
Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:
Buildings 35,905             35,905          -                      
Equipment 417,455           417,455        -                      
Land improvements -                       -                    -                      
     Less accumulated depreciation (135,157)         (135,157)       -                      

Total noncurrent assets 318,203           318,203        -                      
Total assets (420,156)         (351,497)       (68,659)           

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable -$                     -$                  -$                    
Net pension liability 77,298             77,298          -                      
Total liabilities 77,298             77,298          -                      

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 318,203$        318,203$      -$                    
Unrestricted (815,657)$       (746,998)$     (68,659)$         

Total net assets (497,454)$       (428,795)$     (68,659)$         

Statement of Net Assets
Norway Savings Bank Arena

August 31, 2017
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Fund

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE



CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Norway Savings Bank Arena
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Statement of Activities
 August 31, 2017

Norway
Savings
Arena

Operating revenues:
Charges for services 191,572$       

Operating expenses:
Personnel 69,691            
Supplies 3,111              
Utilities 37,883            
Repairs and maintenance -                      
Rent 84,414            
Depreciation -                      
Capital expenses -                      
Other expenses 5,544              

Total operating expenses 200,643         

Operating  gain (loss) (9,071)            

Nonoperating revenue (expense):
Interest income -                      
Interest expense (debt service) -                      

Total nonoperating expense -                      

Gain (Loss) before transfer (9,071)            

Transfers out -                      

Change in net assets (9,071)            

Total net assets, July 1 (488,383)        

Total net assets, August 31, 2017 (497,454)$      



ACTUAL ACTUAL
FY 2018 REVENUES % OF FY 2017 REVENUES % OF

REVENUE SOURCE BUDGET THRU AUG 2017 BUDGET BUDGET THRU AUG 2016 BUDGET VARIANCE
  

CHARGE FOR SERVICES   
  Concssions 18,000$            -$                     0.00% 18,000$            -$                     0.00% -$            
  Sponsorships 275,000$          71,568$                26.02% 230,000$          40,125$                17.45% 31,443$     
  Pro Shop 8,500$              -$                     0.00% 8,500$              1,100$                  12.94% (1,100)$      
  Programs 31,000$            0.00% 31,000$            0.00% -$            
  Rental Income 705,250$          98,704$                14.00% 672,250$          52,951$                7.88% 45,753$     
  Camps/Clinics 50,000$            16,050$                32.10% 50,000$            37,985$                75.97% (21,935)$    
  Tournaments 50,000$            5,250$                  10.50% 50,000$            -$                     0.00% 5,250$        

     TOTAL CHARGE FOR SERVICES 1,137,750$       191,572$              16.84% 1,059,750$       132,161$              12.47% 59,411$     
  

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS -$                     -$                     

GRAND TOTAL REVENUES 1,137,750$       191,572$              16.84% 1,059,750$       132,161$              12.47% 59,411$     

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
REVENUES - NORWAY SAVINGS BANK ARENA

Through August 31, 2017 compared to August 31, 2016



ACTUAL ACTUAL
FY 2016 EXPENDITURES % OF FY 2016 EXPENDITURES % OF

DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU AUG 2017 BUDGET BUDGET THRU AUG 2016 BUDGET VARIANCE
 
 

  Salaries & Benefits 344,000$            69,691$                20.26% 311,000$          50,891$                16.36% 18,800$     
  Purchased Services 71,656$              5,544$                  7.74% 87,306$            5,735$                  6.57% (191)$         
  Supplies 37,100$              3,111$                  8.39% 37,150$            3,118$                  8.39% (7)$              
  Utilities 225,150$            37,883$                16.83% 199,800$          36,629$                18.33% 1,254$       
  Capital Outlay 103,500$            -$                      0.00% 57,000$            11,000$                19.30% (11,000)$    
  Rent 507,000$            84,414$                16.65% 507,000$          84,414$                16.65% -$            

1,288,406$         200,643$              15.57% 1,199,256$       191,787$              15.99% 8,856$       
  

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,288,406$         200,643$              15.57% 1,199,256$       191,787$              15.99% 8,856$       

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
EXPENDITURES - NORWAY SAVINGS BANK ARENA

Through August 31, 2017 compared to August 31, 2016



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Financial Services 

60 Court Street • Suite 411 • Auburn, ME 04210 
(207) 333-6600 Voice • (207) 333-6601 Automated • (207) 333-6620 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      
 

 
To: Peter Crichton, City Manager 
From: Jill Eastman, Finance Director 
Re: Financial Reports for August, 2017  
 
Attached you will find a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of Activities and budget to actual 
reports for Ingersoll Turf Facility for revenue and expenditures as of August 31, 2017.  
 
INGERSOLL TURF FACILITY 
 
Statement of Net Assets: 
The Statement of Net Assets lists current assets, noncurrent assets, liabilities and net assets as of August 
31, 2017.  
 
Current Assets: 
As of the end of August 2017 the total current assets of Ingersoll Turf Facility were $27,546. This 
consisted of an interfund receivable of $27,546, which means that the General Fund owes Ingersoll 
$27,546 at the end of August.  
 
Noncurrent Assets: 
Ingersoll’s noncurrent assets are the building and equipment that was purchased, less depreciation. The 
total value of the noncurrent assets as of August 31, 2017 was $167,406.  
 
Liabilities: 
Ingersoll had no accounts payable as of August 31, 2017.  
 
Statement of Activities: 
 
The statement of activities shows the current operating revenue collected for the fiscal year and the 
operating expenses as well as any nonoperating revenue and expenses. 
 
The operating revenues for Ingersoll Turf Facility through August 2017 are $2,288. This revenue comes 
from the sponsorships, programs, rental income and batting cages. 
 
The operating expenses for Ingersoll Turf Facility through August 2017 were $23,499. These expenses 
include personnel costs, supplies, utilities, repairs, capital purchases and maintenance.  
 
As of August 2017 Ingersoll has an operating loss of $21,211.  
 
As of August 31, 2017 Ingersoll has a decrease in net assets of $21,211. 
 
The budget to actual reports for revenue and expenditures, show the revenue for FY18 compared to 
FY17.  
 



August 31, July 31, Increase/
2017 2017 (Decrease)

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents -$                 -$                
Interfund receivables/payables 27,546$     20,504$       7,042          
Accounts receivable -                 -                   -                  

Total current assets 27,546       20,504         7,042          
Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:
Buildings 672,279     672,279       -                  
Equipment 86,625       86,625         -                  
Land improvements 18,584       18,584         -                  
     Less accumulated depreciation (610,082)    (581,829)      (28,253)       

Total noncurrent assets 167,406     195,659       (28,253)       
Total assets 194,952     216,163       (21,211)       

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable -$               -$                 -$                
Total liabilities -                 -                   -                  

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 167,406$   195,659$     (28,253)$     
Unrestricted 27,546$     20,504$       7,042$        

Total net assets 194,952$   216,163$     (21,211)$     

Statement of Net Assets
Ingersoll Turf Facility

August 31, 2017
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Fund



CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Ingersoll Turf Facility
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Statement of Activities
 August 31, 2017

Ingersoll
Turf

Facility
Operating revenues:

Charges for services 2,288$            

Operating expenses:
Personnel 15,496            
Supplies
Utilities 1,565              
Repairs and maintenance -                      
Rent -                      
Depreciation -                      
Capital expenses 5,970              
Other expenses 468                 

Total operating expenses 23,499            

Operating  gain (loss) (21,211)          

Nonoperating revenue (expense):
Interest income -                      
Interest expense (debt service) -                      

Total nonoperating expense -                      

Gain (Loss) before transfer (21,211)          

Transfers out -                      

Change in net assets (21,211)          

Total net assets, July 1 216,163         

Total net assets, August 31, 2017 194,952$       



ACTUAL ACTUAL
FY 2018 REVENUES % OF FY 2017 REVENUES % OF

REVENUE SOURCE BUDGET THRU AUG 2017 BUDGET BUDGET THRU AUG 2016 BUDGET
 

CHARGE FOR SERVICES  
  Sponsorship 17,000$           1,000$                  5.88% 15,000$            1,000$                  6.67%
  Batting Cages 11,520$           65$                       0.56% 9,940$              705$                     7.09%
  Programs 80,000$           872$                     1.09% 90,000$            2,629$                  2.92%
  Rental Income 103,650$         351$                     0.34% 100,000$          550$                     0.55%

     TOTAL CHARGE FOR SERVICES 212,170$         2,288$                  1.08% 214,940$          4,884$                  2.27%
  

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS -$                     -$                      

GRAND TOTAL REVENUES 212,170$         2,288$                  1.08% 214,940$          4,884$                  2.27%

CITY OF AUBURN, MAINE
REVENUES - INGERSOLL TURF FACILITY

Through August 31, 2017 compared to August 31, 2016



ACTUAL
FY 2018 EXPENDITURES % OF

DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU AUG 2017 BUDGET

  Salaries & Benefits 106,624$            15,496$                14.53%
  Purchased Services 21,110$              468$                     2.22%
  Programs 7,000$                0.00%
  Supplies 5,000$                0.00%
  Utilities 39,720$              1,565$                  3.94%
  Insurance Premiums 2,431$                -$                      0.00%
  Capital Outlay 42,490$              5,970$                  14.05%

224,375$            23,499$                10.47%
 

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 224,375$            23,499$                10.47%

CITY OF AUBURN, MAI
EXPENDITURES - INGERSOLL TU  

Through August 31, 2017 compared to   



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   September 18, 2017  
 
 

Subject:  Executive Session 
 

Information: Discussion regarding economic development, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6) (C). 
 

Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive session.  Executive 
sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of 
public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of 
the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is 
known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall 
within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, disciplining, 
resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of charges or 
complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be 

conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of whose 

education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive 

session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or interests 

therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or 
bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the body or 

agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if both 
parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated 

litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of professional 
responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, municipality or other public 
agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those records 

is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; 

consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and 
review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, 

subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement 
matter.  
 


	0  Agenda 09-18-2017
	1  Huddle Up group Workshop
	1a  Huddle Up Group Visit Itinerary
	2  Info Sheet-HOME Rental Assistance Program
	2a  Staying Home Program Synopsis2
	2b  HOME Rental Assistance Program Guidelines
	3  Info SheetcworkshopTIF- Advantage Payroll Services
	3a  Memo for TIF # 22 9 18 wksp
	3a  TIF #22
	3b  Additional School Subsidy Workshop 9-15-17
	5  Minutes 9-11-2017
	6  JCC Report to Auburn City Council 9.07.2017
	7  Info Sheet Kennel TA AGRP 9-11-17
	7a  Kennel Text Amd CC Packet 9-11-17
	7b  Ordinance 10-09112017  Text Amd Kennels w text
	8  Info Sheet - Junkyard
	8a  Revised Memo to Council and Mayor - Salvage Licenses
	8b  Junkyard - Morris Auto
	7a  Auto Graveyard - Junkyard  Inspection Memo 2017
	7a  title30-Asec3753
	7b  title30-Asec3754
	11a  Morris Auto Parts App

	8d  Order  81-09112017 Don's-Morris Auto Parts Auto Junkyard
	9  Info Sheet MMA Voting Delegate
	9a  Memo and voting form from MMA
	9b  Order 89-09182017 MMA Voting Delegate
	10  Info Sheet - LATC Appt Jody Durisko
	10a  Order 90-09182017 LATC Appt. Jody Durisko
	11  final august finance report
	FY18 August Finance Rpt.pdf
	BS
	rev
	exp
	inv summary

	EMS Billing breakdown fy 18 Aug.pdf
	August 2017 Summary
	August 2017
	August aging

	special revenue accounts as of 083117.pdf
	2018

	Norway Savings Bank Arena Monthly Report- August 2017.pdf
	Balance Sheet
	Income Statement
	Revenue
	Expenditures

	Ingersoll Turf Facility Monthly Report-August 2017.pdf
	Balance Sheet
	Income Statement
	Revenue
	Expenditures


	11b  Executive Session Info Sheet NEW



